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SRI NACHAMMAI COTTON MILLS LIMITED III
Registered Oftice : Door No. 181, 'VASANTHAM', 411eross S1reet. New FalrIands, SALEM 636 016

'ill !l Phone No. 0427-a30847. Fax No. 0427 - 2331951, CIN: L11115TZ1980PLC000916
~ IVm\ -It-V E-mail :ancm @I8dilfmaiI.com Website: lIWW.sncmlndtacom

,
Notice is hereby gillen pur6IIMt »S8diDft• Ind ...,. -=-. pnwisb)S of Jbe Cer.qlII_ Ad. 2013 IhBt the 3811 Annual
General Meeting wiDbe held on '1'ueIcIlIr,1le ,/!/,Ey II~. 2018 at 5.1lOP,M at HcIeI SIt 6al VIW. No.30 Murugan Temple
Street, Fairlands, Salem - 636 016 to Jr8nuct •••..•.•••• JIusilM8. J.J!he 6ban!hoIdenl nf8llUlAld lDaI8nd the same.

ORDJNARY BUSINESS:

1. To ronsider and adopt the audited AnnuaI·Fi8r:iaJ statements indudingBalance Sheet. at 3'" March,2018, the Statement of
Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow S&aB,nenlfor ~ year ended as on that date and the Report of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

2. Sri. A.Arunkumar (DIN .07176491~ DRc*rAdllesj)ynDlioA and belng eIlgIlIe,*rshimlelforre-electlon.

3. Toconsider and, if thought fit, 10pass will orWllhoutalldficaliol"lhefolkMing rescII*Jn as 11'I Ordinary Resolution:

'RESOLVED THAT pursuant to 8edian 1S1(2)_ •. ~ pnMslDI-.1f .,d~~kj" 2013,and the ru~
framed there 1II1der (inckldihg any ......., JIlOIItatDn(a) Of ~s) hr80f for the time being in force)
WS V.V.SOlJNOARARAJAH l CO.•~ ~ (Regisntion No.D03lM4S) Salem be and are hereby appointed as
AudItors of the Company, to hl*01ti:le bin lie COI1IiMbt of •• Annual GenenII ~ • IV!conclusion of the .•2nd Annual
General Meeting of the ~ The BolId d DltlaJrs be Md 118 hereby ~ to fix lleIr remuneration on the
rerommendationoftheAudl~.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. To consider and, if Jhought fit, to pass wlIh orwllhout mQdiIicalion,!he foIowing IYlSOiJtlon Blan Ordinary Relsotution:

'RESOlVED that plJrsuant to the provisionaofSedions 148(3) tIld oU..- appIabIe pIDVlsions, If any, of the Companies Ad, 2013
and the Companies (Audit and AudItors) Rule, 2014 including any staIutory •••••• ds and modifications thereof or
re~nactment thereof tor the time being In force. the remuneration payable to Sri B.VENKATESWAR. CostAccountant, Coimbatore
having the Membership No.21622 appointed bythe Bon of Diredors to concb::t !he Audit of \he Cost accounting records of
the Company for the FInancial Year.2018 -19 amounting to Rs.25,QOO1-per annum exdusive of GST as applicable and I

re-imbursement of out of pocket expenses lncurredin ocmection with !he afoIesaid audit, be lI1d is hereby ratified.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of IHl Company be lI1d is hereby authorised to do all such acts and lake all
such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient toglveeffectto this resolution'.

5. To appoint Smt. C Renuka(DIN.02209915)Additional Dlrectar, as the Directorof Ihe Company.

'RESOLVED THAT Smt. C Renuka (DIN.02209915, who was appointed as an AddltionaJ DIrector on the Board of Directors
('Board') of the Company with effecttrom 30th May, 2018 in tennsofSection 161 oflheCompaniesAct. 2013, holds office uplo the
date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as the Non Executive Non Independent Director, liable to retire by
rotation, of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT P.Umayal, Chairman cum Managing Director of \he Company be and is hereby authorised to lake all
such steps as maybe necessary, proper and expedIentlOgivecompleteelfedtolhisresolutlon.'

mailto:@I8dilfmaiI.com


6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:
'RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Usting Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the continuance of
Directorship of Sri. Perumal Madhavagopal (DIN. 00363963) upto 9" December 2019, who was appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company at the 34" AGM held on 10" December 2014 to hold office for five consecutive years for a term upto 9"
December 2019, not liable to retire by rotation, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment, and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any
staMory modification(s) or re-enactmentthereofforthe time being in force).'

Place : Salem
Date : 30" May, 2018.
Notes:
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy

need not be a member of the Company. Please read the instJUdions printed overleaf the Proxy Fonn attached to this nob before
using the Fonn. The right of remote e-voting shall not beexercised by a Proxy.

2. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of !he Companies
Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements Inwhich Directors are interested, as maintained under Section 189 oflle
CompaniesAct, 2013 will be available forinspection for the members at theAGM.

3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer books of the Company shall remain closed from 1.· Septelllber, 2811to 2t'
Stptember, 2011 (both days inclusive).

4. Additional information pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Usting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in
respect of Directors seeking appointmentlre-appointment at the AGM are furnished and forms part of the Notice. The Directors
have furnished the requisite consents/declarations for their appointment(s).

5. Members holding shares in Physical form are requested to contact MIS. Cameo Corporate Services Umited, Registrars and
Share Transfer Agents of the Company, at 'Subramanian Building', No.1 Club House Road, Chennai 600 002 for recoofing any
change of address, bank mandate, or nominations and for redress of grievance or contact the Company Secretary at the
Registered Office of the Company. In case of shareholders holding shares in demat form, all such intimation are to be sent to their
respective Depository Participants (DP).

6. As per the provisions of the Companies Act, facility for making nominations is available to Individuals holding shares in the
Company. The presaibed nomination form can be obtained from the RTAlDepository Participants.

7. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios and/or in identical names or joint holding in the same order of names
are requested to send the share certificates to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, for consolidation into a single folio.

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India(SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every
participant in securities market for registering transfers, transpositions, transmissions etc. Members holding shares in electronic
form ft, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their dernat
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the RTA, Cameo Corporate 8eMces limited., at
'Subramanian Building', No.1 Club House Road, Chennai 600 002.

9. Members are requested to inform the Companytheire-maillD to facilitate quick response from the Company. MinislryofCorporate
Affairs has recognlsed e-mail communication to share holders as effective and efficient means of communication from the
company and also member's communication to the Company. Members may register their e-mailID with the company and also
keep the Company informed of any changes in their e-mailID.

By Order of the Board,
For Sri Nachammal Cotton MIlls Umlted,

P.UlnayaI,
Chairman cum Managing Director,

D1n.00110260.



10. Members are advised to dematerialise the shares held in Physical form. As per LODR amendments from December 2018,
requests for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with
a depository.

11. The Notice along with the Annual Report 2017-18 are being sent by the permitted mode. Members may note that this Notice and
Annual Report 2017-18 will also be available on the Company's website: www.snanindia.com.

12. A member requiring clarification on account or operations of the Company shall write to the Chief Rnancial Officer/Company
8eaetary at least 7 days before the meeting, so that the information required can be provided.

13. Voting through Electronic Means

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Ad, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide its members, facility to exercise their right to vote at the 3811

Annual General Meeting by electronic means and the business may be transacted through remote e-Voting Services provided by
Central Depository Services (India) Umited (CDSL).

The Instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:

(i) The e-voting period begins on~September, 2018 (9.00a.m) and ends on 2411 September, 2018(5.00 p.m.) During this period,
Shareholders of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of
18.09.2018 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSLfor voting thereafter.

(ii) The Shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www,evotinglndja,oom.

(iii) Click on 'Shareholders' tab.

(iv) Enter your User 10.
a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 10.
b) For NSDL: 8 Charader DP ID followed by 8 DigitS Client ID.
c) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

(v) Enter the image verification as displayed and click on Login.

(vi) If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingincia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any
oompany, then your existing password is to be used.

(vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below.

For Members holding .ha •.•• In Demat Fonn and PhyIIcII Fonn

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN Issued by looome Tax Department (Applicable forbdh demat shareholders as well as
Physical shareholders)

PAN *Members who have not updated their PAN with the CompanylRTAIDP / arerequesled to use the first two letters of their name
and the sequence number in the PAN field. The 51. No. Printed on your addr8Is lip pasted on the Annual Report envelope
added with sufficient Osin between thefirsttwo letters of your name and the 51.No. to ••• l8ndlglt PAN field for this purpose.

Example: If your name is Ramesh Kumarwith S1.No.1 thenenlerRAOOOOCXlO1lnthe"PANf!eId".
u: Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in ddJmrnJyyyyformat) as f8COAIed 1n)'Oll' demat account or in the company
IlilIl records in order to login.DM
dIIId

If both the detaIs are not recorded with the depository or Company please enter the member ktIfoIlo number in the DividendIlIIi

=: Bank details field as mentioned in instrucllon (Iv) .

http://www.snanindia.com.
http://www.evotingincia.com


(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on 'SUBMIT" tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection saeen. However, members holding
shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for
resolutions of any other company in which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL
plat form. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your
password confidential.

(x) For members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xi) Click on the EVSN of'Sri Nachammai Cotton MlUsUmited·.

(xii) On the voting page, there wi8 be 'RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option 'YESINO' for voting. Select
the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies assent to the Resolution and option NO implies dissent to the resolution.

(xiii) Click on the 'RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" to view the Resolution details.

(xiv) Aflerselecting the resolution to vote on, click on 'SUBMIT" .A confirmation box will be displayed. To confirm the vote, click on 'OK",
, else to change the vote, click on 'CANCEL' and accordingly modify the vote.

(xv) Once the vote on the resolution is' CONFIRM' ,shall not be 3IlowId to modify the vote.

(xvi) A print of the votes cast can be taken by clicking on 'Cllck here to print" option.

(xvii) If a Demst account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter User 10 and the image verification code and click on Forgot
Password &enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xviii) Note for Institutional Shareholders, Custodians and Non- individual shareholders

Non- individual shareholders (Le. other than individuals. HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to logon to
www·evoting.comandregisterthemselvesasCorporates.

A .scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be e-mailed to
helpdesk.evoling@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance User
would be able to link the aa:ount(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to he!pdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the aa:ounts
they would be able to cast their vote.

* A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any,
should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the sautinizerto verify the same.

(xix) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Question (FAQs) and e-voting
manual available at www.evotingindia.com. under help section orwrite anemail tohelpdeske-voting@cdslindia.com.

(xx) In case of members receiving the Physical copy and person who acquire shares of the Company and become a member of the
Company as on the Cut -off date.

a) Please follow allsteps troni SI. Nos. (i) to (xvi) above tocsst vote.

b) In case of any queries or issues regarding e-votlng, members may refer to Frequently Asked Questions ('FAQs') and e-voting
manual available atwww.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email tohelpdesk.evoting@cdslUndia.com.

mailto:helpdesk.evoling@cdslindia.com.
http://www.evotingindia.com.
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VOTING AT THE VENUE OF THE AGM

i) The Company offers the facility for voting through polling paper at the meeting. The Members as on the cut-off date 18.09.2018
attending theAGM are entitled to exercise their voting right at the nieeting.

ii) Members who have cast their vote bye-Voting may attend the AGM and shall not ~ titled to cast their vote.

iii) The Chainnan will fix the time for voting at the Meeting. Shareholders present in person or by Proxy can vote.

Generallnstructlons

1. The cut -off date for the purpose of e-voting has ~ fixed as18.09.2018. Members holding shares as on this cut off date should '
endeavour to cast their vote.

2. Voting rights of Shareholders shall be in proportion to theirshareholcling in the Company as on thecut-offdate of 18.09.2018

3. In case a Shareholder by Inadvertence or otherwise has voted under more than one option, his voting by only one mode shall be
taken as final and valid.

4. Mr.M.R.L. Narasimha, Company Secretary in Practice, Coimbatore (Membership No. 2851 CP No. 799) has been appointed as
Scrutinizer to sautinize the e-voting.

5. The 5autinizer shall after the oondusion of voting at the AGM.
(i) Count the votes cast at the Meeting through poIUng paper.

(ii) Thereafter unlock the votes cast through remote e-voting which wiD be done in the presence of two witnesses, not in the
I employment of the Company.

(ii1) The Scrutinizer not later thal'l two days of the oonduslon of the AGMshail submit a consoIldated Scrutinizer Report of the
total votes cast through remotee-voting process and poll cast at theAGM to the Chainnan.

(iv) The Chainnan or a person authorised by him in writing shall declare the result of the voting based on 5autiniser's
Report.

(v) Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolution shall be deemed to be passed on the date of AGM.

(vi) The results declared a10ngwith the SCrutinlser's Report will be placed on the company's website www. sncmindia.
comandon the website of CDSL www.evoting.cdsl.comimmediately after the result is declared and also
communicated to BSE.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

rrEMNo.4

On the reoommendation oftheAudit CommItt8e, 8olI'd of Directors has appointed Sri B.Venkateswar, CostAccountant as Cost Auditor
of the Company for audit of Cost Accounts of the Company for the FY 2018-19 on the remuneration of Rs.25,OOO/· (Rupees Twenty
Five Thousand only) exduding out of pocket expenees and GST. As per the provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with subsequent amendments thereto. remuneration payable to the cost
auditor as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company shall be ratified by the shareholders. Resolution for this purpose is
placedfor oonsideration of members for ~on of the remuneration as stated in the resolution.

The Company has received a Certificate from the Cost Auditor conflnnlng his independence and his wilUngness to act as the Cost
Auditor of the Company.

None of the Directors or the key managerial personnel or their relatives is Interested in the resolution.

http://www.evoting.cdsl.comimmediately


Smt. C Renuka was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 30" May 2018, holds office up to the date of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company, in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with the Articles of Association of the Company. The Board is of the view that the appointment of Smt. C Renuka on the Company's
Board as Director is desirable and would be beneficial to the Company. Resolution for this purpose is placed for consideration of
members for approval by an ordinary resolution.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Companyltheir relatives, except Smt. C Renuka herself, is in any way
concemed or interested, in the resolution.

rrEMNo.6

The members of the Company at its 34"Annual Genem! Meeting held on 10" December,2014 appointed Sri. PerumaI Madhavagopal
as an Independent DirectoroftheCOIllPMY fora period offiveconsecutive,years for a term upto9" December2019.ltMever,'SEBI
vide notification dated 09t,1ay. '2018 notified 1heSecurities and ,Exchange: Board of India lUsting iObligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations. 2018 whefejnit,was prescIiled lIat,',nolisted entityshall,appoinlaperson oraontinuethe
direcIorShipof any person .asa 'non.,executive Ifirector .•• hasattained1he..ofseventy five years,unless:a SpedaI Jt,esoIution is
passed to that effect. Sri Ptmmalt.1adha~exceeds tbeageof,Jewentyfive,(75} year.;.

The Bforesaictprovision shaII:be'effectivefram tt1.04.1019, which wille beflnconvening of lie 3ftAnnual General UIeting.

Brief resume of Sri. Perumat Madhavagopa!, Chaimlanstllps of Board Cornmittees,Sharehoiding and relationships between directors
inter-se elc,as stipulated under Jjstlng ~ and oltter reIev8nt de$ailsas required unctersecretarial.~ on General
Meetings ($8.2) issued by !tie Jnstllute:ot Company Secretaries of India, ale plovided in the Col'pOl'ateGovemtnce Reportforming
partoftheAnntJal Report.

The Board.lJlftSklers that Sri. P.enJmalMadb~:continued JSSOQiation ;would be of immense benefit to Ihe Compaayland it is
desiratlJeto.continue to arlIIIhisservX:es as an IRdependent Director.

Accordingly, ResoMian fDrtbispnpose is ptacedforamideralion ofmembers for.approval by esSpecial Resolution.

N0ne:otthe 0/r.eckIrsIKey Managerial PenioMel of the Company/lbei' relalives, exeept Sri. PeRlmal Madhayag!i1p8l himseIf.is in any
wayooncemedorintereslM,lnthesaid resoIuIiCln.

Place : Salem
Date : 00" Nay, ~18.

By Order of the Board,
For Sri NathammalCottol'MUIs L1mlted,

P.Umayal,
Chllnnan cum ManagIng Director,

01n.60110260,



Detail. of Director seeking appointment/and re-appointment as required under Regulation 31(3) of SESI (Ultlng Obligation.
and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015

1. Name
DIN No.
Date of Birth & Age
Nationality
DCA on the Board
Relation with other Director
Qualification
Experience
No. of Shares held

A. Arunkumar
07176491
20.02.1982 (36 years)
Indian
06.05.2015
Son of Sri A. Annamalai. Director
(B.E)
8 Years in the field of Engineering
2552

ChairmanlMember of the Committees of the Board
of other Companies in which he I she is Dir9ctor

2.Name
DtNNo,
Date of Birth & Age
Nationality
DCA on the Boa'd
Relation with other Director
Qualification
Experience
No. of Shares held

I)J1
Th
Re
DUI
Cot
Mal
As
'Ma
De~
Con
Dire
Purs
hims
Abril
unde
Stan4
At thl
Mana
Mana
and rE

'1.=
------------ ••• ,11",11<"1,, IJj,IX.,.,AI" C., II, •. 12&•••• --------

.C.''''
02209915
16.07.1949 (67 yeas)
Indan
30.05.2018
NIl
SA.
Expert in Acoxmt and FInance
Nil

NilUst of Directorships held in other Companies

ChaIrmanIMember (j the CommiIIBes rI the Board
(j other Companies in which he, she Is Dlr8ctor



Dear Shareholders,
The Board of Directors of your Company is pleased to present the 38~ Annual Report on the business of the Company along
with summary of financial statements for the year ended 31" March, 2018. The report is prepared in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013.
Financial Highlights
During the year under review, performance of your company is as under:

Particulars

Profit before Finance Costs and Depreciation
Finance costs
Depreciation
Profit I (Loss) before taxation
Less: Current tax

Deferred tax
Profit I (Loss) after tax
Add : Other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations
Gain on fair valuation of investments
Income tax relating to these items

Total other comprehensive Income for the year
Total Comprehensive Income I (Loss) for the year
Eamings per share Basic I Diluted

Dividend
The Company is unable to declare any Dividend on account of accumulated losses.
Review of Operations
During the year, the Company has made a turnover of Rs.15731.34 Lakhs as against Rs. 16842.13 Lakhs in the previous year. The
Company has made a net profi1ofRs. 72.17 Lakhs during the current year as compared to Net Profit of Rs. 89.82 Lakhs last year.
Management's Discussion and Analysis
As per the Regulation 34(1) (e) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the report on
'Management Discussion andAnalysis" forms an integral part ofAnnual Report as Annexure -1
Deposits
Company has not accepted any deposits from public.
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Sri A.Arunkumar retire by rotation and being eligible offers
himself for reappointment and the resolution is placed before the Shareholders for approval.
A brief resume, expertise, shareholding in the Company and details of other entities in which the Director is interested as stipulated
under Regulation 36(3)(a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 3S per Secretarial
Standard is provided in the Notice attached.
At the Board Meeting held on 21" August, 2014 Sri P. Palaniappan, Chairman cum Managing Director and Smt. P. Umayal, Joint
Managing Director ofthe Company was reappointed for a term of five years from 19.12.2014 to 18.12.2019 and designated as 'Key
Managerial Personnel" ofthe Company pursuant to Section 2(51),203 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment
and remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(Rupees in Lakhs)

772.35 1,078.34
450.81 513.69
250.88 455.84

70.66 108.81
8.83
(4.41)

104.40
0.38

71.04

3.14
(1.02)
(1.00)
1.12

72.17
1.66

(18.32)
(0.26)
4.00

(14.58)
89.82

2.44
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Internal Auditor

The Company has re-appointed Mr. H. Venugopal as the Internal Auditor of the Company for a further period of one year for the
financial year 2018-19. The scope of work includes review of process for safeguarding the assets of the Company, review of
operational efficiency, effectiveness of system and processes and assessing the strength and weaknesses of internal control. Internal
Auditor reports are placed before the Audit Committee on a regular basis for taking suitable action for improvement, wherever required.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Social R!sponsibility is not presently applicable as the Company does not satisfy the conditions laid down in Section 135
with regard to nelworth, turnover and net profits.

Material Changes and Commitments

There have been no material changes and commitments between the end of financial year (March 31,2018) and the date of the report
affecting the financial position ofthe Company.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls and Internal Control System

The Company has in place adequacy internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the year under review,
such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness i" the design or operation was observed.

Company has established adequate Internal Control procedures, commensurate with the nature of its business and size of its
operations and for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business for safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of tile accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

•information.

The Company has appointed Internal Auditor to observe the Internal controls, whether the work flow of organization is being done
through the approved policies of the Company. In every quarter during the approval of Financial statements, Intemal Auditors will
present the Internal Audit Report and Management Comments on the Internal Audit observation.

Particulars of Loan, Guarantees and Investments under Section 185 - Details of Loan

Amount _ Purposeformille
loan is to be u1Iized

Rs. in Lakhs by IIle recipient

308.25/- Inter Corporate Repayable
Loan on Demand

51. Period of
No. making Loan

01.04.2017
to
31.03.2018

2 01.04.2017
to
31.03.2018

Time period
for which it is

given
Rate of
interest

Supreme Vam Spinners Limited
Door No.181, 'VASANTHAM",
4~ Cross Street, New Fairlands,
Salem 636 016

29.05.2017
06.09.2017
09.12.2017
12.02.2018

29.05.2017
06.09.2017
09.12.2017
12.02.2018

Raja Vam Spinners Limited
Door No.181, 'VASANTHAM",
4~ Cross Street, New Fairlands,
Salem 636 016

582.32/- Inter Corporate Repayable
Loan on Demand

Investment made under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2016
Investment made by the Company is within the limits specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Significant & Material orders

No Significant and Materials orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal which can have an impact on the going
concern status and the Company's operations in future.



Disclosure as required under Section 22 of Sexual Harassment of Workmen at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013
As per the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the
Company has constituted an Intemal Complaints Committee. During the Financial Year 2017-2018 no complaint was received before
the committee.
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Exports and Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo.
The information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange eamings and outgo stipulated under
Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith as
Annexure-II
Corporate Governance
As per the new Regulation 27(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure ReqUirements) Regulations, 2015, a Corporate
Governance Report, together with the Certificate from the Company's Auditors confirming the compliance of conditions on Corporate
Govemance is given in Annexure-Ol
Extract of Annual Return
The extract of Annual Retum pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and
administration) Rules, 2014, in format MGT - 9, for the Financial Year 2017-18 is enclosed with this report .• Annexure-IV
Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties
Transactions entered with related parties have been explained in Form AOC - 2 ·Annexure - V annexed with this report and forms
part of this Report. Further, Policy on dealing with Related Party transactions has been uploaded on the Company's website
http.www.sncmindia.com.
Vigil M8chanismlWhistie Blower Poliey -4

In pUrsuantto the provisions of Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees to
report genuine concems has been established.
The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at http.www.sncmindia.com.
The main objective of this policy is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and to promote a pro-active approach in
reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with the business. In order to achieve the key objective, the policy establishes a
structure and disciplined approach to risk management, in order to guide decisions on risk related issues.
AuditCommittee
Audit Committee is in existence in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the CompaniesAct, 2013. The details relating to the
composition, meetings, and functions of the Committee are given in Corporate Govemance Report. The Board has accepted
recommendations of Audit Committee, hence no disclosure required under Section 177(8) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Risk Management Polley
As per the Regulation 27(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board members were
informed about risk assessment and minimization procedures after which the Board formally adopted steps for framing, implementing
and monitoring the risk management plan forthe Company. All the results and evaluation has been communicated. !
Board Evaluation '
The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and individual Directors pursuant
to the provisionsof the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis of criteria such as the
board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, etc. as provided by the guidance Note
on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017.
The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of
criteria such as the Composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. =l
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The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of individual Directors on the basis of criteria
such as contribution of the individual Director to the board and committee meetings like preparation on the issues to be discussed,
meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs In meetings, etc.
Nomination and Remuneration Policy
The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed the policy on Director's appointment
and remuneration, induding criteria for determining qualifICations, positive attributes, independence of a Director and other matters as
required under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 which have been outlined in Nomination & Remuneration
policy forming part of this Report.
The details of Remuneration to Directors are given in Annexure VI
Directors Responsibility Statement
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that: .•
(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards has been foUowed along with proper '" I

explanation relating to material departures;
(b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that

are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial
year and of the Profit and Loss of the Company for that period;

(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions ofthisActforsateguarding the assets of the Company and tor preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
(e) have laid down internal flnandal controls to be foUowed by the Company and that such internal financial controls are adequale

and were operating effectively.
(n the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of aU applicable laws and that such

systems were adequate and operating effectively.
Particulars of Employees
The disclosure referred to the Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 does
not apply to the Company as !here were no employees who are in receipt of remuneration in aggregate of more than Rs.1 ,02,00,000/· if
employed throughout the year or Rs.8,50,ooo/- per month if employed for part of the year.
Details of toP 10 employees based on their salary is disdosed in Annexure VlIL
Ustlng
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed in BSE Umited and the Company has duly paid the Annual listing fees for the year 2018-19.
Mis. Cameo Corporate Services Umited, Chennai is the Registrar for providing depository services through National Securities
Depository umited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Umited (CDSL), for holding Shares in Electronic mode (De-mat)
of our Shareholders and also is the Registrar tor Share Transfer Services forphysicaJ segment.
Acknowledgements
Your 0Irec(0rs wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the tremendous support from the Bankers Mis. Indian
Overseas Bank, the shareholders, and aUour suppUers and customers. The Board also wishes to place on record their appreciation for
the contribution made by the employees at aUlevels.

Salem,
3(f May, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
P.Umayal,

Chairman cum Managing Director.
Din. 00110260.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS:

Textile Industry is the largest employer of workforce after agriculture; It plays a crucial role in the Indian economy. Its importance to the
Indian economy is reoognised for its significant contribution to industrial production and export eamings. The Indian spinning sedor is
largely organised and continues to be a predominant supplier of cotton yarn in the world. The cotton yam manufactured by the Indian
spinning mills is said to be one among the best in the world.

During the previous year, GST was introduced in July 2017 which led to a drastic slowdown in yam sales since people needed some
time to adapt and exporters received their refunds belatedly. But, these issues have been settled; hence we expect a pickup in yam
sales. Labour shortage and labour absenteeism was also high which led to drop in capacity utilization.

B. OPPORTUNITIES. THREATS. RISKS AND CONCERNS:

ThetPinning industry is dependent on cotton which is an agricultural produd and this single input will be about 60% of the selling price
of yam, hence, price fluctuations and availability of cotton will play major role in the performance of spinning mUlsalways.

C. SEGMENT·WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE:

At present, the segmental reporting is not applicable to the company as its operates only in single reportable business i.e. "Textiles"

D. OUTLOOK:

The minimum support price ri cotton has been fixed for the coming season. There is a considerable increase in the minimum support
priCe and there will not be any significant drop in cotton prices. Hence ,we expect the yarn price will remain more or less the same. With
too many changes happening in the global markets, like the US increasing import tariffs, the coming period will be full of
challenges/opportunities.

E. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY :

The Company has a proper and adequate intemal control system to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected against loss
from unauthorised use or disposition. All the transactions are authorised, recorded and reported correctly.

F. FINANCIALAND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

Please refer Board Report on financial and operational performance review.

G. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES I INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT:

The Company has been conducting trainlng& motivational programs for both the management staff and the workers. The purpose is to
increase the competency levels .inthe orgalization. The Company reoognizes the importance and contribution of its human resources
for its growth and develol>!nent and is committed to the development of its people.

H. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

certain statements made in the Management Analysis and Report relating to company's oulIook, expectations, etc. may constitute
forward looking statements within the meaning of the applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may vary from outlook,
expectations etc, whether express or implied. several factors could make a sIgnIftcant diIrerence to the Company's operations which
may include climate conditions, economic conditions affecting demand and supply, Government regulations, natural calamity, etc. over
which the company does not have any control.



The Company has no R & D Division. The Company is a member of South India Textile Research Association and gets the
benefitsof their research.

C. PARTICULARS ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
EARNINGS Direct Exports Rs. Nil

OUTGO Import of Spares Rs. 71,15,422
Import of Capital Goods Rs. Nil
Import of Raw Material Rs. 21,56,71,354

Rs. 22,27,86,776

Rs. Nil

Rs. 52,07,994
Rs. Nil
Rs. 38,35,55,816
Rs. 38,87,63,810

Place : Salem
Date : 30th May, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
P. Umayal,

Chairman cum Managing Director.
Din:00110260.



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ANNEXURE· III
The Directors present the Company's Report on Corporate Govemance for the year ended on 31" March 2018, in terms of Regulation
34(3) read with SChedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disdosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
1. Company's Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance

b.
The Company's philosophy on corporate govemance is to ensure that its obligations are discharged in a fair and transparent manner
and to enhance the value of all its Stakeholders. The Directors and the Management of the Company maintain high standards d I Cui
corporate govemance in conducting its business and ensure that an effective self regulatory mechanism exists to protect the interest d De
all the Stakeholders. The Company is in compliance with the Corporate Governance norms as stipulated under Schedule V of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchange where its shares are listed. I c-

AlI'
~. Board of Directors II1l

The Board of Directors is committed to ethical and lawful conduct of the business. They provide leadership and strategic guidance on (XlI
the affairs of the Company.
The Company follows the practice of fixing the Board Meetings well in advance to ensure maximum attendance of all Directors. The
Board determines strategic policies, approves annual plans & budgets, capital expenditure, new projects, investment plans, conducts
performance review, ensures compliance, and risk management etc., periodically. A minimum offour meetings of the Board of Directors
are held each year, one meeting is held in each quarter and it is ensured that the gap between two meetings does not exceed 120 days.

a. Composition
Your Company's Board has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-executive, Independent and Women Directors as per
requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.,
Details of composition of the Board, category, attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting, number
of other Directorships and otherCornmlttee memberships are given below.

ciz Name of the DirectorUS

1. Shri P. Palaniappan Din.015n805
(ManagingDirector)

2. Sml P. Umayal Din. 00110260
(Chairman cum Managing Director)

3. Shri A.Annamalai Din. 00625832
4. SM A. A1agappan* Din. 00363600
5 ShriPerumai Din. 00363963

Madhavagopal*
6. Shri S. Ravichandran* Din. 00759455
7. Shri Pl. Subbiah* Din. 02131140
8. Sml Shantha Din. 06976554

Radhakrishnan*
9. Sml Vasantha" Din. 00627405
10. Shri A. Arunkumar Din. 07176491
11. Sml C. Renuka-

Shares
held

3718
100
100

Attendance
Category particulars

Board
AGMMeetIngs

ED{P) 5 Yes

ED{P) 5 Yes

NED 5 Yes
10 2 No
10 5 Yes

10 4 Yes
10 2 No
10 3 No

NED 3 No
NED 5 Yes
NED

Director
ships

.In other
public

companies

Committee positions
across all Public

Companies
Chairman I

Vice Member
chairman



ED (P) - Executive Director - Promoter NED- Non Executive Director
10 - Independent Directors were appointed on 10.12.2014 for a period of 5 years (Upto 09.12.2019)

** Smt. Vasantha, Resigned Directorship from the Board with w.e.f from 30.05.2018
*** Smt. C.Renuka was appointed as Add!. Director w.e.f from 30.05.2018
b. Board MeetIngs

During the financial year 2017-18, Five(5) Board Meetings were held on 2911 May, 2017, 11' August, 2017, 611 September, 2017, 911

December, 2017 and 12'"February, 2018. No Board Meeting was conducted through video conferencing or other audio visual means.
c. Independent Directors
All the Independent Directors of the Company viz., Sri Perumal Madhavagopal, Sri A.Alagappan, Sri S.Ravlchandran, Sri PL.Subbiah
and Smt. Shantha Radhakrishnan were appointed at the 34" AGM of the Company held on 10" December, 2014 for a term of five
consecutive yearstrom 10.12.2014 to09.12.2019.
Independent Directors discussedlreviewed the matters specified in Regulation 25 of SEBI LODRI Schedule IV of the Companies Act,
2013 in the meeting held on 30" January, 2018.AII the Independent Directors were present at the meeting.
3. Committees of Directors
To assist the Board to ensure effective compliance of all the statutory requirements and for efficient conduct of business of the
Company, the Board constituted various Committees. The scope, role and responsibilities of such Committees were dearly defined
in the terms of reference of each Committee as per the statutory requirements. The details of the Committees and their operations
are as follows:
a. Audit Committee
The Board has constituted a well~ualified Audit Committee in compliance with Section 1n of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Usting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All
the members Induding Chairman of the Committee are Independent Directors.

b. TennsofReference
The Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility of overseeing the quality and integrity of the accounting, auditing and
reporting practices of the Company and its compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements. The Committee's purpose is to
oversee the accounting and financial process of the Company, the audits of the Company's financial statements, the appointment,
independence, performance and remuneration of the statutory auditors induding Cost Auditor, the performance of Intemal auditors
and the risk management policies. The terms of reference of this committee are as required by SEBI under Regulation 18 read with
Part C of Schedule II of the SEBI (Usting Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as well as Section 1n ofthe
Companies Act, 2013.
During the Financial year 2017-2018, Four (4) meetings of the Committee was held on 2911 May, 2017, 611 September, 2017,
9"' December, 2017 and 12'"February, 2018.
c. Details of composition of the Committee and attendance of the members at the meetings are given below:

81. Name DesiglUltlon Independent I Non No.of~ IeetInas
No. Independent Held Attended
1. 8hri Perumal Madhavagopal Chairman Independent Director 4 4
2. 8hri A. Alagappan VICe-Chairman Independent Director 4 3
3. 8hri 8. Ravichandran Member Independent Director 4 2

All members of the Audit committee are financially literate and have expertise in accounting /financial management. The Managing
Director, Chief Financial Officer, Internal Auditor and Statutory Auditors attended meetings of the Committee as invitees. Chairman of
theAudit Committee has attended the lastAnnual General Meeting.



In line with nsterms of reference, the Audit Committee, at its each meeting reviewed the operations and the audit reports for businesses
pursuant to audits undertaken by the Internal Auditor under the audit plan approved at the commencement of the year. The quarterly
financial results were reviewed by the Committee before submission to the Board. Independent sessions were held with Statutory and
the Internal Auditor to assess the effectiveness of the audit processes. The Committee reviewed adequacy of Internal Financial
Controls on a Company- wide basis and shared their recommendations on the internal control processes to the Board. On a quarterly
basis, the Committee continues to review whistle blower complaints,litigations, and related party transactions, the corrective actions
and mitigating controls put in place therefore.

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration (NRC) is constituted in compliance with the requirements of Regulation 19 of the Secumies
and Exchange Board of India (Usting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 176 of the Companies
Act. 2013.
a. Terms of Reference
The terms of reference of this committee has been mandated with the same as specified in Regulation 19 read with Part D of
SChedule II of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Usting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
also with the requirement of Section 178of the Companies Ad, 2013.
b. Composition of the committee

.The Committee comprises of 3 Independent Directors. The Chairman Is a Non-Executive tndependentOlrector. The Composition of
the Committee is as under:

51. No. Name Designation Independent I Non Independent
1. 8hri Perumal Madhavagopal Chairman Independent Director
2. 8hri A. Alagappan VIC8-Chairman Independent Director
3. 8hri 8. Ravichandran Member Independent Director

c. Performance Evaluation criteria for Independent Directors.
• Attendance and active participation in Board, Committees and General Meetings
• Qualification, Knowledge, SkIs and Expertise
• Updating of skills and knowledge
• Participation in famiUarization· programmes
• Independent and unbiased opinion
• Informed and balanced decision making
• Leadership qualities
• safeguarding Stakeholders interest
• Compliance with Articles of Association. Companies Ad, 2013and other 8ft and tegUIalIons
• Compliance with ethical standards, Corporate goverr\IRl6 practices and code Iioancb:t dlhe Company
• Review of integrity of financial information and risk management
• Active participation in determination of remuneration ~ DirecIar8. KMPs and otheraenklr R8l8gElI1leOt
• Reporting of frauds, violation ate
• Safeguard of confidential information
• Information about the company and the external environment In whlchlt operaIes
• Reviewing vigtl mechanism and safeguarding inteIest of whIsIIe bIower8
• Effective participation in the deliberations of related party transactions
• Seek expert opinion if required .
• Moderates and arbitrates conflicts of interest between Stakeholder llfId ~ In the inIeRlst d the Company as a

whole.



5. Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy Is In consonance with the existing industry practice and also with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated a policy on
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company. The policy covers the appointment,
including aitena for determining qualification, positive attributes, independence and remuneration of Its Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management Personnel.

a. Remuneration of Directors

Name of the Director Salary Commission Perquisites and Total Service
Others Contract

Sml P.Umayal 15.00 - 0.37 15.37 19.12.2014 to
Chairmancum Managing Director 18.12.2019
Shri P.Palaniappan 15.00 - 0.38 15.38 19.12.2014 to
ManagingDirector 18.12.2019

b. The Company does not pay remuneration to any of Its non-execu1ive directors barring sitting fees for attending
meeting(s).

The detaUsof sitting fee paid to Non Executive Directors during the year are as under:

SI.No. Name of the Director Sitting Fees RI.

1. Shri A. Alagappan 11000
2. Shri Perumal Madhavagopal 21000
3. Shri S.Ravichandran 13000
4. Shri PL.Subbiah 8000
5. Sri A. Annamalai 8000
6. Smt. Shantha Radhakrlshnan 8000
7. Smt. Vasantha 2000
8. Shri A. Arunkumar ooסס1

There has been no materially relevant pecuniary transaction or relationship between the Company and its non-executive directors
during the year. The Company currently does not have any stock option scheme.

6. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee was constituted In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Regulation 20 and Part D of Schedule II of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Usting Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015.

ThIs Committee is responsible for the satisfactory redressal of investors' complaints pertaining to share transfers, non-receipt of
IIlnuai reports, issue of duplicate certifICates, transmission of shares and other miscellaneous complaints. In addition, the Committee
looks into other issues including status of dematerialization/re-rnaterialization of shares as well as systems and procedures followed to
track investor complaints.



St. No. Name of the Director category Designation No .•• , ngs
Held Attended

1. Shri S. Ravichandran Independent Director Chairman 5 3
2. Shri Perumal Madhavagopal Independent Director VICe - Chairman 5 5
3. Shri P. Palaniappan . Executive Director Member 5 5
4. Smt. P. Umayal Executive Director Member 5 5

Miss. Sarita Jain. G, Company Seaetary was designated as the Compliance 0Ificer of the Company as per the requirements of
Regulations of SEBI (Usting Obligations and Disdosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and also responsible for redressal of
investors complaints. The Committee attends inter -alia to complaints from Stakeholders and for their redressaI. All the complaints I
grievances were also placed before the Board for information.·Based on the information provided by the Company's Registrar & Share
Transfer Agents, at the beginning of the year, no complaint was pending. During the period ended on 31- March, 2018, the Company
has not received any complaint from investors and also no investor complaint was pending on 31- March, 2018

The Committee met Five (5) limes during the year: on 2911 ~y, 2017, 12'" August, 2017, t' September, 2017, 9· December, 2017
and 12'" February, 2018. Pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Usting Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 a certificate on half-yearly basis confirming due compliance of share transfer formalities by the
Company from Practising Company Secretary has been submitted to the Stock exchCllgewithln stipulated time.

During the year, no complaint was received from Ministry of Corporate AffairslSEBl, including SEBlcompIaInts redress System
(Scores).

7. Share Transfer Committee

The Committee has the power to approve transfers and transmission of shares and also issue dupli:ate share certificate in lieu of
those, which are reported to be lost or destroyed.

Share Transfer Committee comprises the following Directors:
61.No. Name of the DIrector Category

1. Shri P. Palaniappan Executive Director
2. Smt. P. Umayal Executive Director
3. Shri Perumal Madhavagopal Independent Director
4. Shri S. Ravictlandran Independent Director

No. of IIeetIftgs attendtd

8
8
8
7

During the year, eight (8) meetings of the share transfer committee was held on the following dates:29.05.2017, 13.06.2017,
23.06.2017,05.09.2017,15.11.2017,25.11.2017, 10.01.2018 and 02.03.2018.

The Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, after processing the valid Share Transfer Forms, the Shfi Transfer Register have been
forwarded to the Share Transfer Committee for approval. The said Commlttee meets and approves and the Share Transfers are
endorsed by Sri P.Paltf\iappan, Managing Director or Srnt. P.Umayal, Chairman cum Managing DIrector of the Company. The Share
Transfer Register also duly signed by the Committee members. The duly endorsed Sture Certificates are sentto the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent fordispatches to the Transferee. .

Presently, the sha"e transfers Ytilich are received in physical form are processed and the share certificates duly transferred are
returned generalywlthln a period of 15 days from the date of receipt, subjec.1to thedocumenls being valid and complete in all respects.

There have been no public issues, rights issues or other public offerings during the pastflve yecn.
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8. GeneralBody MeetIngs

DetlIIs of LocaIion, Date and Time of the Annual General Meetings held during the last three years:

y- Venue Date & Time

2017 Hotel 6a1'lthy Classic, 813, Park Street, Fair1ands. Salem - 636 016 27'* September 2017 at 5.00 P.M.
2816 Hotel 6a1'lthy Classic, 813, Park Street, FBir1ands. Salem - 636 016 15- September 2016 at 5.00 P.M.
2015 Hotel 6afllthy Clusle, 813, Park Street, Fair1ands, Salem - 636 016 15- December 2015 at 10A5A.M.

Chairman of the Aud~ Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Commlttee Chairman were present in the last Annual General
Meeting.

Electronic voting facility was provided to members for aM the Resolutions included in the Notice of 37'* Annual General Meeting held on
27'*Geptember,2017.

Mr. M.RL Narasimha. (Membership No. F2851) Practicing Company Secretary, Coimbatore was appointed as sautinizer for
sauIlnizing voting process.

Thnle (3) Ordinary Business and One (1) Special Business was passed through e-voting at the 37'* Annual General Meeting held on
27'* September.2017.

During the Cunent year, the Company proposes to pass aM the Resolutions in Ordinary Business & SJ)ecial business bye-voting in
terms r:ARegulation 34(3) of SEBI (Usting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
9. DIIcIosures
(8) Dur1ngthe financial year ended 31" March, 2018 there is no materially significant related party transaction that may have potential

conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

The Company has formulated a Policy for dealing with Related Party Transactions with related parties are given in the Notes to
the Financial Statements. During the year under review, your Company had not entered into any material transaction with any of
its related parties.

(b) Neltherwas any penalties Imposed nor were any strictures have been passed by SEBI, Stock Exchange or any Statutory au~
on any capital market related matters during the last three years.

(e) The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements laid down under the provisions of SEBI (Usting Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.The Company has adopted various non-mandatory requirements as well as
discussed under relevant headings.

(d) The Company has not accepted deposits from the public and there are no outstanding dues in respect thereof.

(e) The Company has followed Indian Accounting Standards ('lnd AS') in the preparation of the Financial Statements for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01.04.2016 as per the MCAdirections. The significant accounting policies are set out in the notes to
the aa:ounts.

(f) The Company has no subsidiary.

(g) The company has constituted an Intemal Complaints Committee in pursuant to sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and (Redressal) Act, 2013 to redress the grievance of the women employees and take necessary action
to implement the provisions of this Act. No complaint on sexual harassment was received during the financial year 2017-18.

(II) The CEO certification of the financial statements for the year has been submitted to the Board of Directors, in ~s meeting held on
~ May, 2018 as reqoired under SEBI (Usting Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015.



The Company has established a vigil MechanismlWhistle Blower Policy to enable stakeholders (Including Directors and
employees) to report unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct. The Policy
provides adequate safeguards against victimization of Director(s) /employee(s) and direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee in exceptional cases. The protected disclosures, if any reported under this Policy will be appropriately and
expeditiously investigated by the Chairman. Your Company hereby affirms that no Director/employee has been denied access to
the Chairman oftheAudit Committee and that no complaints were received during the year.
The Company laid down procedures to inform Board members about risk assessment and minimization and has implemented the
Risk Management plan and continuously monitors it.
As required by the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has adopted a Code of
Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading. Company secretary of the Company is the Compliance Officer. The Code of Conduct is
applicable to all Directors and such identified employees of the Company as well as who are expected to have access to
unputished price sensitive information relating tothe Company.
The Company has adopted a Code c:A Conduct for Directors and senior Management of the Company, as raquired by Regulation
17(5) c:Athe SEBI(Usting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company has received confirmation
from the Directors and Senior Management regading compliances with the code for the year ended March 31,2018. A Certificate
from Managing Director to this affect is attached to this effect. The code has been displayed on the Company's website.

n). The Managing Director Md Chief FInancial Officer c:A the Company give annual ~anoe certificate in accordance with
. Regulation 17(8) read with Part B c:A Schedule \I c:A SESI (Usting Obligations Md Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

with the Stock Exchange. The annual Compliance Certificate given by Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer is published
inAnnual Report.

n). Details reIaling to appointment Md re-appointment c:ADirectors as required under the provisions c:ASEBI(Usting Obligations and
i Disclosure ~irements)ReguIalions, 2015 is provided in the Notice to the Annual General Meeting.
~. OIherCompllnce
~ llanagelnent DIscussion and AnalysIs

Management Discussion liW1d~ Report is made in conformity with Regulation 34(1 )(e) c:A SEel ( Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Md is attached to the Board Reportfonning partc:AtheAmual Report c:AtheCompany.

n Quarterly FInancIal Resub
~ Pursuant to ReguIalion 33(1) c:A SEBI (Listing 0bIigali0ns Md Disdosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Quarterly Financial

Results n approved by the BoiI"d on the reoommendaIions of the Audit CommiUBe. These were axnmunicated to the Sted
Exchange by emaiI after the ooncIusion c:A the BoCId Meeting iJld published in IedIg dciIies, as required within the stipulated
timeMd uploaded on the website c:Athe ComplIly.

I) QuarterlyColnpllance Report
The Cornpq has submitted for aI the qtBtBrs during 2017-2018, the CompIanoe Report on Corporate Governance to Sted I
Exchange in the prescribed XBRlformalwilhin 15days from thecloserc:Aeach quarter.

Iv)TheBoanl
Since the ~ does not have a Non-&8aItive Chairman as on Marth 31"',2.018,. does not maintain such office.

¥) RepoItIngoflnlemal Report
The Inlemal AucIklr c:AtheCompcIty is a permalent invitee to theAucit CommIltee Meeling iJld I'lQUIarIy attends the meeting for
/I!POIfingtheirfindingsc:Athelntemal aucIltotheAucit CommIttee members.

vi) •••••••ofeo...nIcaIion
The CompIIly is conscious c:A the ln1maa c:A lineIy cissemlnaIIon of adequale i1rol1l1allon to the Stakeholders. The dates of
Boad meetings, General Body meeli1gs, Book Closure iJld Quarterty resub nbelng pOOIshed In NEWSIlENASSOCIATES
lMTED iJld TRHTY PRINTERS AND PU8USHERS LMTED iJld is also ~ on the website of the Company at
www.snanida.mm.

http://www.snanida.mm.


d. CI)
PI)

LIsting on Stock Exchange
For Dematerialization
Company ISIN Number. INE443E01016
UstIngFee

The Company's website contains a dedicated section 'Investor" which displays details / infonnation of interest to various
stakeholders.

vii) The Company has fully complied with the applicable requirement specified in Regulations 17 to 2J and Clause (b) to (i) of Sub-
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI (Usting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

11. There has been no instance on non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report
12. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION :
L Annual General MeetJAg

Day, Date & Time Tuesday, 25" September, 2018 at 5.00 P.M
venue Hotel Sri Sal Vihar, No.30 Mllf\lgan Temple Street, Falrlands, Salem - 63& 01&

b. financial Calendar (Tentative)
Year ending
AGM
Unaudited results for the Quarter ending June 30,2018
Unaudited results for the Quarterlhalf year ending

September 30,2018
Unaudited results for the quarter ending December 31, 2018 :
Audited Results for the year ending March 31, 2016

c. Book Closure Datet

31" March,2019
30a September, 2019
~ Week of August, 2016

2'"' Week of November, 2018
2'"' Week of February, 2019
Before 31" May, 2019
19a5eptember, 2018 to 2ft' September, 2018
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of the Annual
General Meeting.
BSE Umlted -Stock Code No. 521234
National Securities Depository UInited
Central Depository Services (India) Umited
Annual Usting fee for the financial year 2016-19 paid
to BSEUmited
BSEUmited
(Demal) 521234/ SRI NACHA
Equity shares INE443E01016Demat ISIN Numbers in NSDL & CDSL

f. Stock market price data for the year 2017·2018
The high and low prices during each month in the last financial year on aSE Urnlted are given below Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- each.

Month SSE
High Low

April'17 13.37 11.80
May'17 14.31 11.36
June'17 17.00 13.26
JUly' 17 24.95 14.65
August'17 25.00 20.50
september' 17 21.75 18.15
October'17 18.10 15.00
November' 17 22.50 15.70
December' 17 22.05 17.45
January' 18 22.25 17.00
February' 16 20.60 18.25
March'18 20.30 16.25



g. Reglstm and Share Transfer Agent
Cameo Corporate Services Umited
'Subramanian Building' V Floor,
No.1, Club House Road, Chennai - 600 002
fbQoo; 044 - 28460390 (6 Unes) ~ 044-28460129, Grams: CAMEO
~ cameo@cameoindia.com, ~ www.cameoindia.com

h. (al Shareholding pattern as on 31.03.2018 b. Distribution of share holding as on 31.03.2018

category No. of No. of % Shareholding No. of %of No. of % of
Holders Shares range Holders Holders Shares Shares

Promoters 7 2363096 54.96 1 - 100 2357 68.74 218297 5.08 \
NRl/OCBsl 8 4048 0.09 101 - 500 700 20.42 186563 4.34
Bodies Corporate 48 107907 2.51 501 - 1000 156 4.54 126806 2.95
Resident Individual 3317 1n6066 41.30 1001 - 2000 97 2.83 142974 3.32
HUF 48 48383 1.13 2001 - 3000 27 0.79 69963 1.63
Mutual fund 1 500 0.01 3001 - 4000 22 0.64 75920 1.76

4001 - 5000 12 0.35 55732 1.30
5001 - ooסס1 25 0.73 181104 4.21

10001 & above 33 0.96 3242641 75.41
Total 3m ooסס430 100.00 TOTAL 3429 100.00 4300000 100.00

I. Dematerlalisatlon of shares on liquidity

Shares of the Company can be held and traded in el6ctronicform as stipulates by SEBl, the shares of the Company are accepted1n .
the Stock Exchange for delivery only in dematerialization forms.

Status of Dematerialisation of Shares as on 3111 March, 2018.

Holder Physical Demat Total
No. of Shares % 10paidup Capital No. of Shares % 10paidup Capital No. of Shares % 10paidup CaJilaI

Promoters 0 0 2363096 54.96 2363096 54.96
Public 415875 9.68 1521029 35.36 1936904 45.04

Total 415875 US 3884125 90.32 4300000 100.00
Your company ronfirm that the entire Promoters holdings are in electronic form and the same is in line with the direction issued by
SEBI. The equity shares of the Company are regularly traded in BSEUmited.

Considering the edvantage of dealing In securities in e1ectronicldemateriafization form, Shareholders holding Shares in physical
form are requested to dematerialize their shares at the earliest. For further information! Clarification/assistance in this regard,
please contact MIs .CameoCorporate Services Umited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agents.

j. Outstanding GDRs IADRa/Warranta IConvertible Instruments

The Company has not issued Global Depository Receipts or Amerdan Depository Receipt or Warrants or any Convertible
instruments.

k. Commodity Price RiskIForeign Exchange Risk and Hedging
The company did not engage In hedging activities.

I. Plant Location: A Unit & B Unit
Near Railway Station, Chettinad - 630 102. Sivagaoga District, TamUnadu.

f

mailto:cameo@cameoindia.com,
http://www.cameoindia.com


•• Address for Conespondence
AI c:onesponseIIce Ihocdd be acIckessed to

RegidenId oIIice Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Door No. 181,"VASANTHAM', Cameo Corporate 5ervices Umited
t' Cross &reel. New Failtalds, 'SubramaniM Building', V Floor, No.1, Club House Road,
8aIem - 636 016. Chennai - 600 002

CIIIIf EacaIive 0IIiceI"s Dedaration on Code of ConchIct
In IlllXIRtancewilh Ragajation 34(3) d SEBI (Usting Obigalions and Disdosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock
EJdIlIIge(s).1 hereby dedare that althe BcmI membefs and Senior Management personnel of the Company have complied with the
CcldeafCcncU:tdthe~forthe~endedon31"Ma'ch, 2018.

P. Palanlappan,
Managing Director& CEO.

Din: 01577805

To
'DIe ••• of Din!dDrs,
III IN' ' CoIaIa"'l.bIlIId, Salem.
II) weheftlbycertify that we have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement d the Company foI'the year ended

an:tru.m. 2018CRi lhatto lhebestd our knowledge and belief:
(l) IIeIe •••.•••• do not con1ain any maIeriaIIy untrue statement or omit any material fact or oontain statements that may

berni_sa tllg;
(i) IIeIe atalelnenls present a 1nJeand fair view of the stale d aIfars of the Company and of the results of operation and

••••••. The IiIaIciaI statements !mebeen prepared il oonformity, in all material respects, with the existing Generally
MceplBdAoxutlilg PrmpIes ildudiIgAa:ounfing Statdads.

b) 1heI8_tollebe9ld 0lI'1a'lorMedge and beief. no tnIlsactions entered into by the Company during the financial year 2017-18,
lIhid'I_fraIdErt,legalorvDaleanydlhe~y'soodedoonduct.

c} WIt •• telIPOl1Stily for estabishi19 and malnfaini1g intemaI controls for financial reporting and that the same have been
•• r IIforlleeledi'f'enessdlheillemaicontrol systems of the Company pertaningto financiailePO'ting and the same have
•••• cIiBdolled to lie Audbs and Audit CommlIlee. deficiencies in the design or operation d such intemal oontrols, if any, of
tINcII and IEpstaken or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies.

dJ we ••• ideated to the Audikn and the Audit CommlIlee
i. •• ilia ••c:ha1ges in the intemaI cmlroI over financial reporting during the year.
i lIigrIiIIa. dIanges iIa:counIing policies dtIing the yea" and that the same has been disclosed in the notes to the

lnanciaIitilEIliMts; n
i. In8cesd .gnlta" fIaJd eXwhich have become aware and which involve management or other employees who have

•• iIIa•••• i1the~ InlemaI conlroI systemoverfilancial reporting. However. thele was no suchinstance.
A. ••••••• P. PALANIAPPAN,
a*f AadaI~. Managing Director.

Din: 01577805.



To
The Members of Sri Nachammal Cotton Mills Umited

We have examined the complianre of conditions of Corporate Govemanre by Sri Nachammal Cotton Mills Umited ('the Company')
for the year ended March 31, 2018 as stipulated in Securities and Exchange Board of India (Usting Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Usting Regulations) as referred to in Regulation 15(2)of the Usting Regulations for the period AprI
01, 2017 to March 31,2018.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Govemanre is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to a
review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions ~
Corporate Govemanre.lt is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

we have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordanre with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in India, to the
extent relevant, and as per the Guidance Note on certification of Corporate Governanre issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.,

In our op/hion and to the best of our information and according to our examination of the relevant records and the explanations given to
us and the representations made by the Directors and the Mmagement, we rertify that the Company has complied with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Usting Regulalions dUring the yearended Math 31,2018.

we further state that such complia1ce is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor as to the efficiency or
effecliveness wIlh which the Mmagement has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For V.v. SOUNDARARAJAN & CO••
Chartered Aooountants, Auditors.

PIace:~
Date : *Sf May, 201~

v.s. Ashok Kumar,
(Partner).

Membership No. 021435.



FORM NO. MGT - 9 - ANNEXURE -IV
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE ANANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31 ST 2018

(Pursuant 10 Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
C~:·L17115TZ198OPL~16
RegislraIion Date: 07.03.1980
Nlml of the Company : SRI NACHAMMAI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
CategoryISub-Category of IheCompany : Public Company I Company Limited by shares
AddnIss of the Registered Office and Contact details: Door No. 181, 'VASANTHAM', 4"Cross Street, New Fairlands, SALEM 636016
WheIher &sled Company : YES
Nlml, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer agent If any :
MIS.cameo Corporate Services Limited, ' Subramanian BuHdings, No.1 Club House Road, Chenoai 600 002

H. PMICPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
Aft !he business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:

81. Name and Desaiption of main
NIC Code of the Product/service % to total turnover of the Company

No. productsIservice
1. Manufacture and Sale of Cotton Yam 131 - As perNIC Code 2008 99%

81. Name and addfess
CINlGLN Holding I Subsidiary IAssociate Applicable section

No. ot the company

1. Nil Nil Nil Nil

Iv. A. &HARE HOlDING PATTERN (Equity Share Breakup 81 percentage of Total Equity)
I) Category_e Shamoldlng

Category of Share No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the %
Holders beginning of the year end of the year Change!

during
Dernat Physical Total %ofShares Demat Physical Total %ofShares the year

A. Promoters & promoter
group

a) Individual I HUF 2,347,167 0 2,347,167 54.58 2,348,596 0 2,348,596 54.62 0.04
b) Bodies Corporate 14,500 0 14,500 0.34 14,500 0 14,500 0.34 0.00

Sub-t8tlf (A)(1 ):. 2,361,667 0 2,361,667 54.92 2,363,096 0 2,363,096 54.96 0.04

(2) Fore. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-tDtal (A)(2):· 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Tetal pnNIIOter
Shll'llaoldlng
(A) • (A) (1 )+(A) (2) 2,361,667 0 2,361,667 54.92 2,363,096 0 2,363,096 54.96 0.04

B. PuIlIIc lhare holding
(1) InItlIuaons
a) Mutual Fund 0 500 500 0.01 0 500 500 0.01 0

Sub-total (B)(1) :. 0 500 500 0.01 0 500 500 0.01 0



... ,..., SRI NACHAMMAI COTTON MILLS LIMITED ~

Category ct Share No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the 'lb

Holders beginning ct the year end ct the year during
Demat Physical Total 'lfodShnl Demat Physical Total 'lfodShlnli the year

(2) Non-InstiIuIIon
(I) Bodies Corporate 110,377 3,533 113,910 2.65 104,374 3,533 107,907 2.51 ~.14
(i) Individual shaehoIders

holding noni1aI shn
capilaI up to Rs.1 Iakh 430,447 374,178 804,625 18.n 582,967 366,599 949,566 22.08 3.36

(i) Individual shaehoIders
hoIdilg nomi1al share capi
-tal in excess ct Rs.1 Iakh 932,186 43,266 975,452 22.68 783,234 43,266 826,500 19.22 -3.46
SuIHotIl (8)(2):- 1,473,010 420~ 1,893,987 4U5 1,470,575 413,398 1,883,973 43.81 ~.24

TobIIPubic
Sh-.hoIdIng
(8)-(8)(1)+ (8)(2) 1,473,010 421,477 1,894,487 44.06 1,470,575 413,898 1,884,473 43.82 -6.24

C. 0Ihen
a) Hindu Undivided Families 41,199 0 41,199 0.96 48,383 0 48,383 1.13 0.17
c) Non - Resident Incians 670 1,977 2,647 0.06 2,071 1,977 4,048 0.09 0.03

SU••.•••••• (C):- 41,869 1,977 43,846 1.02 50,454 1,977 52,431 1.22 0.20
GrIIid totaI(A+B+C) 3,876,546 423,454 4,300,000 100.00 3,884,125 415,875 4,300,000 100.00 0.04

II) ShINhoIdIng of PnHnoters (Equity)

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % Change in
St. Shareholders' NlI1le % of total %ofShares % of total % of Shares ShlRhoking
No. No.of Shares of the .=u18d No. of Shares of the pledged! duringthe

Shares Company Shares Company enambered yearto toIaIshai8s to total Shares
1. Sri.P.PaIriJppan 198,505 4.62 0 198,505 4.62 0 0
2. SmtP.UmayaI 1,036,343 24.10 0 1,036,343 24.10 0 0
3. Sri.P.PaBliappan (Hut) 618,162 14.37 0 619,591 14.41 0 0.04
4. Smt GeelhanjaIi Ramasamy 398,981 9.28 0 398,981 9.28 0 0
5. Sri.Ranasamy. MC 81,175 1.89 0 81,175 1.89 0 0
6. Sri.MC.Ranasamy (HUF) 14,001 0.33 0 14,001 0.33 0 0
7. Supreme Yarn Spinners Limited 14,500 0.34 0 14,500 0.34 0 0

TOTAL 2,361,667 54.93 0 2,363,096 54.97 0 0.84
III) Change In Promoter'I Shareholding (Equity)

Share holding at the beginning Cumulative Share holding
St; No. & NMle of the of the year during the year

Promoter % of total Shares % of total SharesNo. of Shares of the Company No. of Shares of the Company
1. Sri. P.PaIaniappan (Hut) At the beginning of the. year 618,162 14.37 - 14.37

23.06.2017 - By onine purchase 1,099 0.026 619,261 14.40
21.07.2017 - By onine purchase 330 0.008 619,591 14.41
At the end of the year 619,591 14.41

.. ~-._-- - ~~,-

I



Iv) ShInhoIdlng Plttem of Top Ten Shareholders (equity) (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)
THERE WERE CHANGES IN THE SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS DURING THE PERIOD·
011D412D17 TO 311D312018)

Share holding at the beginning Cumulative Share holding
St. No. & Name of the For Each of the Top of the year during the year

ShnhoIder 10 Share holders % of total Shares % of total SharesNo. of Shares of the Company No. of Shares of the Company

1. Mr. Raju Bhandari At the beginning of the year 127,808 2.97 - -
CIIInges in the 25.01.2018 - By online purchase 90,000 2.093
•••••••• ng At the end of the year - - 217,808 5.065

2. Mr. Raju 1fA Bhandari At tile beginning of the year 70,000 1.63 - -
a...-inthe••••••••• At the end of the year - - 70,000 1.63

3. Mrs. AJI.P.A. VaIianvIIa At the beginning of the year 66.862 1.55 - -
Adi At the end of the year - - 66,862 1.55

4. Ni;I Secuities PrIvate At the begimIng of the year 42,932 1.00 - -
llniIBd At the end of the year - - 42,932 1.00

5. Mr. Rajendra Kumar Jain At the begi •••• of the year 41,553 0.97 - -
& MIs. AdlaIa Ramawat
CIIInges in the 30.09.2017 By online pun:hase 5 0
8IIIIIIIOIIIng At the end of the year - - 41,558 0.97

6. Pftaj K&INw Ramawat At the beglMlng of the year 31,110 0.724 - -
ChIDgIIin the 03.11.2017 By online purchase 101 0.002 31,211 0.726

••••••••••••• 05.01.2018 By online purchase 6,003 0.140 37,214 0.865
12.01.2018 By onIlne purchase 1,079 0.025 38,293 0.891
02.03.2018 By online purchase 17 0.000 38,310 0.891
At the end of •••• year - - 38,310 0.891

7. Mr. V. Palaniappan At the beginning of the year 36,707 0.85 - -
At the end of the year - - 36,707 0.85

8. Mr.Ashok D\IlgeI'shi At the beginning of the year 33,949 0.79 - -
DecIlia At the end of the year - - 33,949 0.79

9. Mr. Raju 1fA Bhandari At the beginning of the year 66,636 1.55 - -
CUnges in the

•••••••••• 07.04.2017 - ByonIne purchase 1,470 0.034 68,106 1.584
14.04.2017 - ByanIne purchase 220 0.005 68,326 1.589
21.04.2017 - By online purchase 1,001 0.023 69,327 1.612
28.04.2017 - By online purchase 125 0.003 69,452 1.615
05.05.2017 - ByonIlne purchase 500 0.012 69,952 1.627
12.05.2017 - Byonline purchase 397 0.009 70,349 1.636
19.05.2017 - Byonine pun:hase 915 0.021 71,264 1.657

, I I , I



., SRI NACHAMMAI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
@.21

Share holding at the beginning Cumulative Share holding
SI. No. & Name of the For Each of the Top of the year during the year

Shareholder 10 Share holders % of total Shares % oftota! Shares
No. of Shares of the Company No. of Shares of the Company

26.05.2017 - By online purchase 4,088 0.095 75,352 1.752
02.06.2017 - By online purchase 1,000 0.023 76,352 1.776
09.06.2017 - By online purchase 892 0.021 77,244 1.796
16.06.2017 - By online sale -349 -0.008 76,895 1.788
23.06.2017 - By online sale -10 0.000 76,885 1.788
30.06.2017- By online purchase 1,258 0.03 78,413 1.824
07.07.2017 - By online purchase 2,911 0.068 81,054 1.885
14.07.2017 - By online purchase 97 0.002 81,151 1.887
21.07.2017 - By online purchase 1,214 0.028 82,365 1.915
28.07.2017 - By online purchase 3,220 0.075 85,585 1.990
04.08.2017 - By online purchase 3,402 0.079 88,987 2.069
11.08.2017 - By online sale -1,063 -0.025 87,924 2.044
01.09.2017 - By online purchase 3,000 0.070 90,924 2.114
08.09.2017 - By online sale -1,650 -0.038 89,274 2.076
10.09.2017 - By online sale -556 -0.013 88,718 2.063
22.09.2017 - By online sale -500 -0.012 88,218 2.052
20.10.2017 - By online purchase 1,000 0.023 89,218 2.075
08.12.2017 - By online purchase 1,000 0.023 90,218 2.098
08.12.2017 - By online purchase 2,225 0.052 92,443 2.150
08.12.2017 - By online purchase 2,901 0.067 95,344 2.217
12.01.2018 - By online purchase 35,097 0.816 130,441 3.034
19.01.2018 - By online purchase 3,677 0.086 134,118 3.119
25.01.2018 - By online sale -89,226 -2.075 44,892 1.044
02.02.2018 - By online purchase 300 0.0070 45,192 1.051
02.02.2018 - By online purchase 2,000 0.0465 47,192 1.097
23.02.2018 - By online purchase 1,300 0.0302 48,492 1.128

At the end of the year 48,492 1.128

10. Mr. V. Annamalai At the beginning of the year 32,314 0.75
At the end of the year 32,314 0.75

11. Sri Kants Suresh Jain· At the beginning of the year 59,415 1.38
Changes In the 24.11.2017 By online sale -442 58,973 1.38
Shareholdlng 01.12.2017 By online sale -359 58,614 1.38

08.12.2017 By online sale -1,490 57,124 1.34
05.01.2018 By online sale -57,124
At the end of the year

• In last year this folio is shown, now this yeer It is closed



Share holding at the beginning Cumulative Share holding
Sl. No. & Name of the For Each of the Dinlcbs of the year during the year

Direc:b andKMP No. of Shares
% of total Shales No. of Shares % of toIal Shares
of the Company of the Company

1. Snt p.lJmayaI At the beginning of the ,... 1,036.343 24.10 - -
At the end of the yell' - - 1,036.343 24.10

2. Sri P. PaIaniappan Atthe beginning of the yur 198,505 4.62 - -
At the end of the year - - 198,505 4.62

3. Sri. A. AIagappan At the beginning of the ,... 100 0.00 - -
At the end of the year - - 100 0.00

4. Sri. PenImaI At the beglrmlng of the ,... 100 0.00 - -
MedhavagopaI At the end of the year - - 100 0.00

5. SrI. A. Annamalai At the beginning of the ,... 3,718 0.09 - -
At the end of the year - - 3,718 0.09

&. Snt \IaslrIlha At the begiMlng of the ,... 0 0 0 0
At the end of the year 0 0 0 0

7. SrI. S. Rawichanlhn At the begtMIng of the year 8,234 0.19 - -
At the end of the year - - 8,234 0.19

a. Sri. PL Sdlbiah At the beginning of the ,... 0 0 0 0
At the end of the year 0 0 0 0

9. Snt ShantIa At the beginning of the ,... 0 0 0 0
RarIIakrishnan At the end of the year 0 0 0 0

10. SrI. A. Anna.Inar At the beginning of the year 2,552 0.06 - -
At the end of the year - - 2,552 0.06

11. Sri. A. SubnInanian At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
At the end of the year 0 0 0 0



IV B. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Preference Share Breakup as percentage of Total Preference Capital)
I) Category-wlse Shareholdlng

Category of Share No. of Shares held at the
Holders beginning of the year

Demat Physical Total %ofShares Demat
A. Promoters & promoter

group
a) Individual I HUF
b) Bodies Corporate

Sub-total (A)(1 ):-

(2) Foreign
Sub-total (A)(2):-
Total promoter
Shareholdlng
(A)· (A) (1)+(A) (2)

8. Public Share holding
(1) Institutions

Sub-total (8)(1) :-

(2) Non.Jnstltutlons
(i) IndMs!ual shareholders

holding nominal share
caPital upto of Rs.1 lakh

(ii) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share capi
-tal in excess of Rs.1 lakh
Sub-total (8)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholdlng
(8)-(8)(1)+ (8)(2)

C. Others
Sub-total (C):-

Grand total(A+B+C)

No. of Shares held at the
end of the year

Physical Total

- 1,500,000 1,500,000 100.00

- 1,500,000 1,500,000 100.00

%
Chan

during
% of Shares the year

Ii) Shareholdlng of Promoters (pntferenee)

Shareho/ding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
SI.

Shareholders' Name % of total %ofShares % of total %otShares
No. No.of Shares of the ~ No. of Shares of the pledged/

Shares Shares encunilered
Company k>k>taIShares Company to total Shares

1. Sri. P. Palaniappan 500,000 33.33 0 500,000 33.33 0
2. Smt. P. Umayal 1.000,000 66.67 0 1,000,000 66.67 0

TOTAL 1,500,000 100.00 0 1,500,000 100.00 0



HI) Change in Promoter's Shareholding ( Preference) • There were no changes in the Shareholding Pattern of any other
Promoters other than as mentioned below:

Share holding at the beginning Cumulative Share holding
SI. No. & Name of the of the year during the year

Promoter
No. of Shares % of total Shares No. of Shares % of total Shares

of the Company of the Company

1. Sri. P. Palaniappan At the beginning of the year 500,000 33.33 - -
At the end of the year - - 500,000 33.33

2. Sm!. P. Umayal At the beginning of the year 1,000,000 66.67 - -
At the end of the year - - 1,000,000 66.67

Iv) Shareholdlng. Pattern ofTop Ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs) • NIL, AS
THE PREFENCE SHARES ARE ENTIRELY HELD BY THE PROMOTERS CUM DIRECTORS

(w) SUrehoIding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (preference):

Share holding at the beginning Cumulative Share holding
St. No. & Name of the of the year during the year

Director
No. of Shares % of total Shares No. of Shares % of total Shares

of the Company of the Company
1. Sri P. Paianiappan At the beginning of the year 500,000 33.33 - -

At the end of the year - - 500,000 33.33

2. Smt. P. Umayal At the beginning of the year 1,000,000 66.67 - -
At the end of the year - - 1,000,000 66.67

V. INDEBTEDNESS:
Indebtedness of the Company including interest oulstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans excluding deposits Unsecured loans Deposits Totallndebteness

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the Ananclal year

i) PrinclpaIAmount 3,508.79 2,497.17 - 6,005.96
I) interest due but not paid - - - -
I) InI8rest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (1+11+11I) 3,508.79 2,497.17 - 6,005.96
Change In Indebtedness
During the financial year

• Addition 1,386.68 - - -
• Reduction - -794.43 - -

Net Change 1,386.68 794.43 - 592.25

lNItbtIdness at the end of the
FInancial year

i) Principal Amount 4,895.48 1,702.73 - 6,598.21
I) InIer8st due but not paid - - - -
i) Interest accrued but not due paid - - - -

Total (1+11+111) 4,895.48 1,702.73 - 6,598.21



VI. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managaing Director, Whole· Time Director and/or Manager

NameofMD's
Total AmountSmt.P.Umayal Sri.P.Palaniappan

Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)

of the Income-taxAe~ 1961
(b) Value of perquistes uls 17(2) of the Income-taxA~ 1961
(e) Profrts in lieu of salary uls 17(3) ofthe Income-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission

- as % of profit -Insurance policy
- others, specify... PF

5 Others, Please specify - Club fee

Total (A)

0.16
0.22 0.22

0.15

15.37

0.16
0.44

0.15

30.75

Name of Directors
SrLPerumI/ SrL SrL Sri. SIlt. Shantha Total

MadMvagopai A.AJagapplll S.Ravlclland PLSUbblah Rldhakriahnan

2 Other Non-Excecutive Directors
Fee for attending board! committee meetings
Commission
Others,P1easespecify

Total (2)

Total (B) • (1 + 2)

Total Managerial Remuneration ( A+B)

Note: Remuneration shown above only sitting fees paid to the Directors for attending Board Meeling & Committee Meetings.

Independent Directors
Fee for attending board/ committee meetings
Commission
Others, Please specify

Total (1) 0.21 0.11 0.13

Sri Sri
~ A. AnmIlulM' SnC.'¥

0.08 0.10 0.02

0.08 0.10 0.02

0.81



S. Particulars of Remuneration
Key Managerial Personnel

TotalNo. Company Secretary CFO

1 Gross Salary 2.40 2.99 5.39
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)

of the Income-tax Act, 1961 - - -
(b) Value of perquistes uls 17(2} of the Income-taxAct,1961 - - -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary uls 17(3) of the Income-tax

Act, 1961 - - -
2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission

- as % of profit - - -
- others. specify ... - - -

5 Others. Please specify - Bonus - 0.16 0.16

Total (C) 2.40 3.15 5.55

Section of Brief Description
Detansof Penallyl Authority [RD I Appeal made, if

Type Companies Act PunishmenVComJXllln NCLT I COURT] any (give details)- ding Fee impoSed

A. Company
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

B. DinIc:tors
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

C. OIIter OffIcers In Default
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil



Form No. Aoe - 2 - ANNEXURE - V
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3 )of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered Into by the company with related parties referred to
in sub-section (1) of section 188 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 Including certain arms length transactions under third

proviso thereto
Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: Nil
Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: Nil
All transactions entered by the Company with Related Parties were in the Ordinary Course of Business and at Arm's Length pricing
basis. The Audtt Committee granted omnibus approval for the transactions (which are repetitive in nature) and the same was reviewed
t1y the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. There were no materially significant transactions with related Parties during the
Financial Year 2017-18 which were in conflict with the interest of the Company. Hence the related party transactions of the Company
for the financial year 2017-18 not fall under the purview of disclosure under Form AOC-2. Disclosures as required under AS- 18 have
been made in Note No.46 on the notes to Financial Statements.

Salem
30" May, 2018.

P. Umayal,
Chairman cum Managing Director.

DIN: 00110260.
PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION - ANNEXURE - VI

The information required under Section 197 of the Act and the Rules made there-under with subsequent amendments thereto, in
respect of.employees of the Company is as follows:-
(a) the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial

year: Non Executive Directors : Nil
sl.No. Name Category Ratio

1. Sri. Palaniappan Managing Director 9.94
2. Sm!. P. Umayal Chairman cum Managing Director 9.94

• Non - Executive directors don't receive commission, or any other fees ete except sitting fees for attending board I committee
meetings.

• Sm!.P.Umayal, CMD and Sri P.Palaniappan, MD did not receive any sttting fees in their capacity as non-executive director
but only receives remuneration.

(b) percentage increase in remuneration of each director, CMD, CFO and Company Secretary Non Executive Directors: Nil
(c) percentage increase in median remuneration of the employees during the financial year: 0.99%
(d) the number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company: 180
(e) average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial',

year and tts comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out W
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration : The percentage increase in salaries
of employees Is 2.9%. There is no Increase in the managerial remuneration.

(f) The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
Particulars of Employees

(a) Employed throughout the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating to Rs.1.02 Crore or more - Nil
(b) Employed for part of the year and in receipt of remuneration of Rs.8,50,OOOor more per month - Nil

Note: Remuneration includes s,alary and value of perquisites. The nature of employment is contractual.



ANNEXURE - VII

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31sT MARCH .2018
Form No. MR·3

(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To
The Members,
Sri Nachammai Cotton Mills Umited,
C1N:L17115TZ1980PLC000916
No.181, 'Vasantham', 4" Cross Street, New Fairtands, Salem - 636 016.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Mis. Sri Nachammal Cotton Mills Umlted (hereinafter called 'the Compan}"'). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.

Based on my verifICation of the MIS. Sri Nachammal Cotton Mills Umited books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
rep,esentatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
OOftWing the financial year ended on 31" March, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the

, COmpanyhas proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
'. madehereinafter:

I bave examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by MIS. Sri Nachammai
~ MIlls Umlted ("the Compan}"') for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2018 according to the provisions of :

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

The Securities Contracts (RegUlation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Ad, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and Extemal Commercial Borrowings does not arise;

(v) Thefollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the securities and Exchange Board of IndiaAct, 1992 ('SEBIAct'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisnion of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibnion of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Company has not issued any securities during the year under review and hence the question of compliance of provisions
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 does not arise;

(d) The Company has not issued any securities during the year under review and hence the question of compliance of provisions
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based employee benefits) Regulations, 2014 does not arise;



(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Usting of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 does not arise;

(1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The company has not delisted its securities from any of the Stock Exchanges in which it is listed during the period under review
and hence the question of complying with the provisions of the Securities ald Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2009 does not arise;

(h) The Company has not bought back any securities during the period under review and hence the question of complying with the
. provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) RegUlations, 1998; and

(i) The Securities Exchange Board oflndia (Usting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Seaetaries of India

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards,
etc. mentioned above.

I further report thIt there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and8l'l8Urecompliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that,
The Board~of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. There were no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and formeanjngful participation at the meeting.

Based on the verlfIcatIon of the records and the Minutes, the decisions of the Meetings of the Board I Committees of the Company
where carried out with the consent of the majority of the Board of Directors! Committee Members and there were no dissenting
members as per the Minutes.

Further in the Minutes of the General Meeting, the particulars of the members who voted against the resolutions have been properly
recorded.

M.R.L NARASIMHA,
Practicing Company Seaetary,

Membership No. F2851,
certificate of Practice No. 799.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is Annexed as annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

Place : Salem
Date : 30th May, 2018



ANNEXURE·A
TO SECRETARIAL REPORT OF EVEN DATE

To
The Members,
Sri Nachammai Cotton Mills Limited,
CIN: l17115TZ1980PlC000916
No.181, 'Vasantham', 4"'Cross Street, New Fairtands, Salem - 636 016.
My Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is to make a report

based on the secretarial records produced for my audit.
2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness

of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected
in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices I followed provide a reasonable basis for my report.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the company.
4. I have obtained the managemenfs representation about the compliances of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of

events, wherever required.
5. Compliance with the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the

management.
6. This Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness

with which the man<:gement has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place : Salem
Date : 30th May, 2018

M.R.L. NARASIMHA,
Practicing Company Secretary,

Membership No. F2851,
Certificate of Practice No. 799.

DetaU.ofTop 10 Employees in terms of gross remuneration paid during the year ended 31st March, 2018
ANNEXURE· VIII

Statement containing the particulars of employees in accordance with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
ItImIneraUon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

SI Name of the Employees Desgination Remune- Qualification ~ Joining Age Last
No. ration Rs. (Years) Date (Years) Employment

1. Sri P.Palaniappan Managing Director 15,00,000 BE,M.S (USA) 41 10.08.1981 74 -
2. Smt. P.Umayal Chairman cum 15,00,000 B.Se., 31 18.08.1982 69 -

Managing Director
3. Sri PL.Algappan Deputy General 3,55,974 OME 30 18.02.2017 57 Vinayaka Mills

Manager
4. Sri SP.Chidambaram General Manager 5,31,994 OMIT 31 21.01.2013 49 Jayamurugan

Textiles
5. Sri S.Srinivasan General Manager 3,54,107 BABl 40 10.03.2006 70 Sree Jayajothi

Personnel Textiles
6. Sri Kirupa Jesudos Senior Manager 3,35,396 OIT 27 17.06.1993 47 -
7. Sri V.Shanmugha Sundaram Mill Manager 3,30,094 On.B.Com. 23 16.09.2012 42 Subburaj Cotton

Mills
8. Sri N.Sivakumar Manager-Purchase 3,16,466 B.Com., 28 24.01.1990 51 -
9. SriA.Subramanian Chief Financial officer 3,15,226 M.Com. 21 03.10.1997 54 PAMills India LId
10 Sri RM.Karthiresan Manager - Marketing 3,10,266 M.Com., 26 09.08.1995 46 -



MIS. V.V. SOUNDARARAJAN & co.,
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of SRI NACHAMMAI ConON MILlS UMITED, Report on the Financial Statements.
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sri Nachammai Cotton Mills Limited ('the Company"), which comprise of the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of profit and Loss (includiilg Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes 1\
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatoly
information.

Management's Responslbilltyforthe Financial Statements
l;he Company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act. 2013 ('the Acr) with respeclto
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other
accounting principles generaUy accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making jUdgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intami
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due m.
fraud or error.
Auditors; ResponsIbility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. In conducting our audit, we have taken into 8CCOUM
the provisions of the Act. the accounting. and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the·
provisions of the Ad and the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under Section 143 (11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143 (10) of the Ad.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aIxM
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatemenl
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's jUdgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the finana;'
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the finailcial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriata in the.
circumstances. An audk also ilcIudes evaluating the appropIiateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the finana;
statements.

OpInion
In our opinion and to the best of our infonnation and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so reqUired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31 , 2018, and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the y8ar ended as on that data.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory RequIrements

1. As required by the Companies (Audito(s Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Govemment in teons of Section 143 (11)
of the Act, we give in Annexure "A' a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act. based on our auditwereportthat:
a) we have sought and obtained all the infonnation and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the

_11_a& MNlr_.t4.it.



b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination
those books;

c) the balance sheet the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and t
statement of cash flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March 31,2018 taken on record by the board
di8ctors, none of the directors are disqualifl8d as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)of theAct;

Q with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness
such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure "B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operati
elfectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting; and .

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the auditors' report in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditol
Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the bestofour information and according to the explanations given to us:

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements under Note 40.

H The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts tor which there were any mater
foreseeable losses

iii Transferring of dividend to investor education and protection fund is not applicable as the Company has not deciared any dividen
in the earlier years.

0lIIer matters
ThefinanciaJ statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 prepared in accordance with Companies (Accounting Standarc
Rl*ls, 2006, were audited by another firm of chartered accountants under the Companies Act, 2013 who, vide their report dated 29-05-201
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

8aIem
30" May, 2018

Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditors' Report
(Rerened to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the members
•• Nlcttammai Cotton MIlls Limited ofeven date)

1. a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed assell

b. The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are verified in a phasi
manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the period and I
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable havil
regard to the size of to the Company and the nature of its assets.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the evidences receivl
from Banks, Immovable properties whose title deeds have been pledged as security for Term Loans and cash credit facilities avai~
from Banks are held in the name of the Company. In respect offreeh~ properties these have been confirmed by the management

2. a. As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified by the management at regular intervals during the year .

.b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verification of inventori,
followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

c. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper records of
inventories and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification as compared to the book records.



In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company complied with the provisions of Sectiol
186 oftheAct, with respectto the investments made.

During the year, Company has not made any loans or investments or given any guarantees and hence disclosure under this clauSE
related to compliance with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act does not arise.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and as such clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company specified by the Central Govemment under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable to the Company, and are of the opinion that prima facie the specified cost
records have been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination ofthe cost records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employees' State insurance, Income tax, Service Tax, value added tax, and any other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were
outstanding as at 31" March, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income tax, Service tax or Value added tax I GST
which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to
any of the banks.

T~e Company did not raise any money by way ofinitial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans
. during the year. Accordingly, clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company
was noticed or reported during the year that causes the financial statements to be materially misstated.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company is not a nidhi Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. j

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, transacti0n8\, ••
with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transac!ionl'
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. "

According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company ••
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares orfully or partly convertible debentures during the year. ' "'

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not entered into no~h transactions with Directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly paragraph 3(xv) d
the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For V.V. Soundararajan & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 003944S

V.S. Ashok Kumar
Partner

Membership No. 021435
Salem
30th May. 2018



Annexure· "B" to the Independent Auditors' Report
(ReI'ened to In paragraph 2 (~ under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremenls' Section of our report to the Members of SrI Nachaml
COlton Mills Limited afeven date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause Q) of Sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies A
1013 rtheAd")
we haYeaudited the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of SrI Nachammai Cotton Mills Limited ("the Company') as of Maldl31. 20
InconjIIlction with our audit of the financial statemenls of the Company fortlle year ended on that date .
.....-nrs Responsibility tor Internal Financial Controls
The Board of DinlctoIs of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the intemal control 01
tm:laI repoI1lng aiteria estabflShed by the Company considering the essential componenls of internal control stated in the Guidance Note onAudii
InIemIII FInancial Controls over Ananclal Reporting issued by tile Institute of Chartered Accountanls of India. These responsibilities include the desiI
/qIIementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
II busiIess, the safeguarding of Its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recon
lIldthe1lmely preparation of reliable financial infonnation. as required under the Companies Act, 2013 .
••••• Responsibility
Olr l8SJlOIlSIbiIityis to express an opinion on the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of tile Company based on our audit We condld
011' audit in acconlance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Anancia1 Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') issued by Ii
••••• of Chartered Accountan1s of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the exte
",,-to an audit of intemaI financial controls. Those Standalds and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requiremen1s and pIl
lIld perfoml the audit to obIain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established ar
IIIIIInIaInedand Ifsuch controls operaled effectively in all material respects.
Olraudlt involves performing procerlures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reportir
lIldllelroperating elfectiveness. OUr audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financi
~ overfinancial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exisls. and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness I

InIemIII control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks I

•••• misstatement in the financial statemenls. whether due to fraud or error.
We IIIIIew that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internl
IIwlCilI control system overfinancial reporting .
•••••• oflnlemal Financial Control. over Anlnclal Reporting

.£. A~ internal financial control overfinancial reporting Is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability offinanci<
,), •••••••• and the preparation of financial statements for extemaI purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company'
:,! iIIIInIIlnancial control overfinancIaJ reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabI
• ••••• 8CCUI'8IeIyand fairly reftect the transactions and dispositions of tile asse1s of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transaction
'." .AICOIded as necess8IY to pennit preparation of financial s1atemenls in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipt

•• ~ of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and Directors of the Company; and (3
" •••• 1IIIOIl8bIe assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use. or disposition of the company's assets tha

.lIMa matllriaI etfed on the financial slatemenls.
l' , 5'*oflnlemal Financial Controls over Flnanclll Reporting
•••• ofthe Inherent limitations of in\emal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management Cl
••••• of conlroIs. material miss1atemenls due k> error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intema

';' ••••• controls over financial repoI1ing to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
't. In r' ,. becauseofchanges in conditions, orthatthedegree ofcompliancewith the policies orprooedures may deteriorate.
F •••••

'''.opinIon and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company has. in all material respects, an adequate internal financial1ft.-.." over financial reporting and such IntemaI financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at MaR:h 31, 2018.
,·F··••••• on the inlemaI control over financial reporting aiteria established by the Company considering the assentiaI components of intemal control stated
·; •••• GuldInce Note QIlAudit of Internal Financial Controls OverF'mancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
J For v.v. Soundal'll'lljan & Co

Chartered Accountan1s
Finn Registration No. 0039445

V.S. Ashok Kumar
Partner

MembershIp No. 021435i';t"'..,.2018
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• SRI NACHAMMAI COTTON MillS LIMITED 1BJ
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018 Rs.ln Lakhs

Particulars Note As at As at As at
No. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

ASSETS
Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment 4 2,936.93 3,153,92 3,491.94
Capital work in progress 5 - 4.62 41.64
Financial assets

Investments 6 72.36 5.00 5.26
~erfinancialassets 7 41.42 43.93 76.74

Deferred tax asset 8 299.09 299.71 293.98
cnher non-cunent assets 9 79.89 61.57 106.72
Total non-current assets 3,429.69 3,568.75 4,016.28

Current assets
Inventories 10 5,647.31 4,585.25 4,735.22
Financial assets

Trade receivables 11 2,066.02 1,909.57 1,744.28
Cash and cash equivalents 12 30.32 112.17 35.07
Bank balances other than above 13 198.36 178.81 137.72

cnher current assets 14 189.03 165.16 85.12
Total current assets 8,131.04 6,950.96 6,737.41

Total Assets 11,560.73 10,519.71 10,753.69
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital 15 428.64 428.64 428.64,
cnherequity 16 1,801.92 1,729.76 1,639.94
Total equity 2,230.56 2,158.40 2,068.58

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 1,861.08 3,014.35 2,928.17
~er financial liabilities 18 1,557.89 1,434.03 1,518.10

Provisions 19 72.78 61.40 38.53
Total non-current liabilities 3,491.75 4.509.78 4,484.80
Current liabilities

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 20 4,449.36 2,865.20 3.278.55
Trade payables 21 769.06 296.05 375.05
~er cunent liabilities 22 611.30 677.55 537.22
Short Term Provisions 23 8.70 12.73 9.49

Total current liabilities 5,838.42 3,851.53 4,200.31
Total liabilities 9,330.17 8,361.31 8,685.11
Total Equity and Liabilities 11,560.73 10,519.71 10.753.69
The accompanyingnotesform an integralpartof the financialstatements

As per our report of even date attached
For MI. V.V.80UNDARARAJAN & Co., For and on behalf of the board
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No. 03944S) P.UMAYAL P.PALANIAPPAN
V.S.ASHOKKUMAR Chairman cum Managing Director Managing Director
Partner DIN: 00110260 DIN : 01577805
M.No.021435
Salem, India A.SUBRAMANIAN SARITA JAIN.G

May 30, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary



; Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2018 Rs.ln Lakhs

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
profit on sale of fixed assets
Interest expense
Interest Income
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes

Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) I Decrease in other financial assets
(Increase) I Decrease in inventories
(Increase) I Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase) I Decrease in other assets
Increase I (Decrease) in provisions, other liabilities
Increase I (Decrease) in trade payables
Cash generated from operations
Less : Income taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash froml (used In) operating activities (A)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of PPE (including changes in CWlP)
Sale proceeds of PPE (induding changes in CWlP)
{Investments in)1 Maturity of fixed deposits with banks
Investments
Interest received
Net cash froml (used in) Investing activities (B)

c.h Flows From Financing Activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Repayment from short-term borrowings (net)

;;Interest paid
cash froml (used In) financing activities (C)

t",,-Increase (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
;,,'~:cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
:';c::.h and cash equivalents at end of the year
',''Notes :

1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 "Cash Flow Statements".

2. Components of cash and cash eqUivalents
Balances with banks

- in current accounts
- Margin Money Deposit with Banks

Cash on hand

250.88
(O.34)

450.81
(102.36)
669.65

2.51
(1,062.06)

(156.45)
(38.68)
68.09

473.01
(43.93)

(O.85)
(44.78)

(32.24)
3.31

(19.55)
(68.38)
99.70

(17.16)

(1,153.27)
1,584.16

(450.81)
(19.92)
(81.85)

112.17
30.32

0.67
30.32

P.UMAYAL
Chairman cum Managing Director

DIN: 00110260

A.SUBRAMANIAN
Chief Financial Officer

455.84
(4.61)

513.69
(105.55)
968.18

32.81
149.97

(165.29)
(33.97)
64.07
(79.00)

936.77
(5.17)

931.60

(84.59)
8.40

(41.09)

103.64
(13.64)

86.18
(413.35)
(513.69)

(840.86)
77.10
35.07

112.17

0.40
112.17

P.PALANIAPPAN
Managing Director

DIN: 01577805

SARITA JAIN.G
Company Secretary



Note For the year ended Forthe yearended
No. March31, 2018 March31,2017

Continuing Operations

A Income
Revenue from operations 24
Other income 25
Total Income

B Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 26
Changesin inventoriesof work-in-progress,stockintradeandfinishedgoods 27
Power and Diesel Consumed 28
Employee Benefits Expense 29
Finance costs 30
Depreciation and amortization expense 31
Stores and spares consumed 32
Other expenses 33
Total Expenses

C Profit before exceptional Items and tax
Exceptional item

o ' Profit I (Loss) before tax from continuing operations
Income tax expense 34
Current tax
Deferred tax credit I (charge)
Profit I (Loss) for the year

E Other comprehensive Income
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations
Gain on fair valuation of investments
Income tax relating to these items
Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive Income I (Loss) for the year

Earnings per share 35
Basic eamings per share
Diluted earnings per share

The accompanying notes fonn an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Mis V.V.SOUNDARARAJAN & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No. 039445)

V.S.ASHOKKUMAR
Partner
M.No.021435

15,731.34 16,842.13
144.99 202.83

15,876.33 17,044.96

10,761.46 10,171.38
(402.86) 860.59

1,693.33 1,826.19
1,367.24 1,289.46

450.81 513.69
250.88 455.84
756.69 683.58
928.13 1,135.42

15,805.68 16,936.15

70.66 108.81

70.66 108.81

8.83
(0.38) (4.42)

71.04 104.40

3.14 (18.32)
(1.02) (0.26)
(1.00) 4.00
1.12 (14.58)

72.17 89.82

1.66 2.44
1.66 2.44

P.UMAYAL
Chainnan cum Managing Director

DIN: 00110260

Salem, India
May 30, 2018

A.SUBRAMANIAN
Chief Financial Officer

P.PALANIAPPAN
Managing Director

DIN: 01577805

SARITA JAIN.G
Company Secretary



Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2018

A. Equity share Capital

Balance at the beginning of April 1, 2016

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance at the beginning of March 31, 2017

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance at the beginning of March 31, 2018

Other Equity
Rs.ln Lakhs

Securities Other Retained
Particulars Premium comprehensive earnings Total

Income

659.65 1.68 978.61 1,639.94

I (Deductions) during the year (14.58) 104.40 89.82

14.58 (14.58)

as at March 31, 2017 659.65 1.68 1,068.43 1,729.76

1.12 71.04 72.16

(1.12) 1.12

659.65 1.68 1,140.59 1,801.92

P.UMAYAL
Chairman cum Managing Director

DIN: 00110260

P.PALANIAPPAN
Managing Director

DIN: 015n805

A.SUBRAMANIAN
Chief Financial Officer

SARITA JAIN.G
Company Secretary



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

1. Corporate Information

Sri Nachammai Cotton Mills Limited (SNCM) was incorporated in March 1980 as a wholly owned subsidiary of' Jawahar Mills Limited'.
ceased to be a subsidiary ofThe Jawahar Mills Limited with the allotment of the said 46,000 shares on 9.8.1982.

The Company has been expanding and modemizing its plant over the years. All expansions and modemisation schemes completed
far has been funded from intemal accruals and Long-term borrowings. It has expanded its spindlage from 16,120 spindles in 1980 to
present level of 53,664 spindles and 504 Rotors

2. Basis of preparation offinancial statements

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention
on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
('the Act') (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indill!
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Basis of preparation and presentation

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance wilh
accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

Tile preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires management to
. make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company's functional currency. All financial information
presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest Lakhs (up to two decimals).

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 30.05.2018.

2A Critical accounting estimates and managementJudgments

In application of the accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management of the Company is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements used in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Property, PIantand equipment (PPE)

The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs are assessed by the technical team at each reporting date by taking into account
the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement and maintenance
support. Upon review, the management accepts the assigned useful life and residual value for computation of depreciation/amortisation.

Currenttax

Calculations of income taxes for the cument period are done based on applicable tax laws and managemenfs judgement by evaluating
positions taken in tax returns and interpretations of relevant provisions of law.



Deferred Tax Assets (including MAT Credit Entitlement)

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at each reporting date to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be retained! recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Fairvalue

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value offinancial instruments where active market quotes are not available.
In applying the valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are,
as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is
not observable, management uses its best estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates may
vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reporting date.

Impalnnent ofTrade Receivables

The impairment for trade receivables are done based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The assumptions,
selection of inputs for calculation of impairment are based on management judgement considering the past history, market conditions
and forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting date.

Impairment of Non.financlal assets· PPE

The Impairment of non-financial assets is determined based on estimation of recoverable amount of such assets. The assumptions used
In computing the recoverable amount are based on management judgement considering the timing of future cash flows, discount rates
and the risks specific to the aaset.

DefIned Benefit Plans and Other long term employee benefits

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefits, and the present value of such obligation are determined by
the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
future. Management believes that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
mortality rates and attrition rates are reasonable. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nalure, this
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Falrvalue measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities could not be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
JIBI8Q8lTl8I1t uses valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model, to determine its fair value The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible. but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is exercised in

,establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

~nsandcontingenclas

The I8C09nition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on
,_experience and circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from
"thefigure estimated at end of each reporting period.

ItICent accounting pronouncements
s Issued but not yet effec:tlve

,"" following standards have been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
•. IndAS 115- Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective from April 1, 2018)
b. Ind AS 116- Leases (effective from April 1,2019)
D.Company is evaluating the requirements of the above standards and the effect on the financial statements is also being evaluated.

II8RlIIcInt Accounting Policies

versus non-c:urrent classification
Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on currentl non-current classification.



An asset is treated • cunent when it is :
i) ExpecliBd10be r88Iisedor Wended 10be sold or conswned in normal operaIqJ cycle
ii) Held prin&IIyfor the purpose d ~
i) ExpecliBdto be I8aIisedwtilllleMl man" after \he ftlPOI1ing.period, or
iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setlIe aliabilly for at Iea6t twelve months after the

reportingperiod
AI other assets are cIassilied • norH:UmlI'Il
A iabiIilyis cunent when :
i) It is expecteIj kl be selIJBdin nonnaI operating cycle
ii) It is held primIriy for the purpose d hdilg
ii) It is due kl be sealed wilhinllI1IeIvemonIls after the f8POdinlIperiod. or
iv) There is 00 unconditionalrVht to defer the setlIement d the Iabity for at least tweIYemonI1s after the ~ period
AI other iabiIies _ classified • non-currenl
0*'I8d lax assels lRllabities are cIassilied as ~ assets lRllabilies.
The operating cycle is fie line between fie acquisIion d assels for PlocessilQ and their reaIisalion incash and cash equivalents. The
Companyhas idenIiIied12monI1s. itsoperalilg cycle.

b) FIIrYMIe •••••••••.•••••
The Company has applied \he fair value measucement whareos necessbted at each reporting period.
Flir valua is •• price hit wodd be MC8Nedkl Bel •.• asset 01'paid to nnsfer aliabity in an orderty IrlInsactionbelween mIIlllIt
I*ficipeIIIs at the nesuremant date. The fairvalue meas_mllllt is based on the presumption hit the A\sadion kl seI the asselor
__ ••• IabIlyI8les placeellher:
i) , In \he pm:ipII madl8t for lie asset or iabiIily;
ii) In •• absence d a principall1Btlet, in •• most advlDIIgeous nl8It8t for the assel or lability.
The prilCipelor" most advlriageous mlItret III.IStbe accessIlIe by the ~.
The fIir valua d •.•assel or Iiabily is rneaswed usirv<ltle~ that mlrket pd:ipan1s would use when pric:lIYlJthe asset or
Iabity, assuming hit natreIJ)lIIicipriI act in their economic best inleresl
A fairvaluemI8SUl8IlMl d a non •••••• asset takes Intoaccount a martcetparlcipanfs abilityto generate ec:onomicbenefitsby usq
•• lIItelln Is hWlIItand •• beltuseorbyseling Ikl8ldter mftltpdlipalltlhalwould use the asset Inilshighestand bestuse.
The ~ _ VIIIuaIian aecIIliquBs•••• ~ inthec:irolmslallC8Sand forwhichsulIicientdata •• availablekl m&8SlR
flirvalue, Reriotliiij" Ul8d~ab8eMlblequsandll"nising the use dunob&ervable inptlts.
AI ••••••••••• for which filii'value is maaBl.RId• disclosed in the financial stalemellts •• categorized withinthe fair value
~ dIlsc:rIled. foIows. basedonflelowestlMlquthatissignificanttolhefairvalue measurement. a whole:
l.MI 1: OldId(•••• J9'od)•••• pricesin aewe •••• for identicalasset5 or liabilities;
l.MI2 : Y8IuIIion••••••• for which •• lowest IMIInput thel is significantto the fair value measurement is diJ9CIIyor indinlcIr
obseI wabIe;lRl
l.MI3: YIluIIIiDn•••••• forwhlch•• 1rMest1Ml inpulthalisslgnilicantto"fairvaiJe measurement is unobseIvable.
For •••• 1IId•••••••••• P80t9ized inlhelinnial &IaIBI'811sona recooing basis, the Company delem1ineswhelbertransfers
hIM 00CIInId•••••• 1MII1n •• hierwI:hyby 18as1BSI" cMagoitzaliD,l(based on the lowest IaveIinputthat is significlWItkl1tlefair
vaIue~.8")at"endofeach repclIttIgperiod.
The ~ haldlIsigna6ed "18IP8CIM taam leads todetermil8lhe policiesand procedures forbolh I8CUtringand non - recurriIV .)
fair value ..........a ElcaImaI•••• lR iwoNed. whareos necessary with the approval d ~s boani d direclols.
8eIecIon CfIariaincbie IIl8itet IlnoMadge,f1lI)Utalion,indepelldence and whether professional standa'ds •• maintained.
For •• purpose of fair value disdo&In, lie Company has delemined classes of assets and IiabiIies on the basis d the naIure,
d8'acleiislcsand rilIkdfleasset.lallIlyandlhelMlofthefairvalue hierarchyas explained above. TheCOl11lQOllfttwisefairvalue
me8liURIlIIRisdisdDeed InfletWvaltnoles.



cl Revenue Recognition
Sale of goods

Revenue Is recognlsed to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured, regardless of when the payment Is being made. Revenue on sale of goods is recognised when the risk and
rewards of ownership Is transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides with the despatch of the goods or as per the inco-tenns
agreed wiIh the customers.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined tenns of
payment It comprises of invoice value of goods inclUding excise duty and after deducting discounts, volume rebates and applicable
taxes on sale. It also excludes value of self-consumption.

Interest Income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, caU and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses .

...d) Property, plant and equipment and capital work In progress
Deemed cost option for first time adopter of Ind AS

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), the property, plant and equipment were carried in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation. The company has elected to fair value its land as the deemed cost as at the date of transition, viz., 1April 2016 and applied
IndAS 16 retrospectively for all other classes of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Presentation

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs of a qualifying
asset, if the recognition criteria are met When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit
orkl6s as incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of tangible asse1s outstanding at each balance sheet date, are disclosed as capital advances
under long tenn loans and advances and the cost of the tangible assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed
ascapitalworlt in progress.

Component Cost

AI materiaJI significant components have been identified and have been accounted separately. The usetullife of such component are
anaIysed independently and wherever components are having different useful life other than plant they are part of, useful life of
componentsare considered forcalculation of depreciation.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that
lIle fuUire economic benefits embodied within the partwill flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs
8Ildmaintenance are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Machinery spares! insurance spares that can be issued only in connection with an item of fIXed assets and their issue is expected to be
mgutar are capitalised. Replacement of such spares is charged to revenue. Other spares are charged as revenue expenditure as and
when consumed.

DIrecognltlon

pi: •.~ or Josses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal
5Jt:•. ~ and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized ..•'

At e



•• DeprecAdion on property, pIIIIt and equipment
Depreciation is the syslemaIic alIocaIion of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. The depreciable amount for assets is
the cost of IIIasset, or olher amoootsubstilulBd for cost, less 5% being its residual vakJe.
DepreciaIion is provided on wriUen down V8Iue method, overlie useful lives specilied in Schedule" 10the Companies Ad, 2013, except
in /lIlIP8Cl of certain assets, wheAt useful. estimaIed based on illemaI assessment and/or indepeIldellt technical evaluation carried
out by extlImaI •• , pasttJends and dilJersfrom the useful lives as P1esaibed underPart CofSchedule IIof the Companies Act 2013.
Deptecialion forPPE on additions Is CllIIcuIaaedon pro-nda basis from the dale of such addIions. For delelionl disposaIs,the deprecIalion
Is cak:l1llRBdon pro-nda basis up 10 the date on which such assels have been discarded( sold. Additions to fixed assels, costing 5000
ead1 or less In fulydepreciated retailing its residual value.
The residual vaUls, usefulliYes and methods of depRlciaIion of property, plant and equipment In reviewed at ead1 financial year end
and adjusted prospeclIveIy, ifappIOpIBa.

f) lnYentortes
!nvenIoriBs In caried at the IcMer of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of ptIthase and other costs inctm8d ill brilgiw;J
the iIMllllol ies Io"present IocaIion and condition.
(I) RMr ••••••••• : AJ.speciic idelltilicalion meI10d including olher cost inclITed in bringing malIllriaIsIconumabies to their prem

iocalion and condIion.
(I) Sb:kol •••••• SpaNIand PIlddng •••••• : Determilllld based on WeightedAverage method.
(ti) F1nisIIId", •• WDrk ill •••••• : DeEm.llld lIIder FIFO method wheAt cost ilwoives Cllfl\IllrSion and other costs

Inctmld in bringing the iw8nbies 10Illlirpresentlocalion and condition.
, Net I8IiIsabie YlIiueIs 1le8llllmllllld aeIng price in the 0RIn8ry COlIS8 ofbusiness, less esIimalIIld CDlllIof conlpietioo and !he estin8ld

costs necessary 10mauthe •.
g. FInInciII •••••••

FilancIaI ••••• and InancillIi ••••• In _0911Ised ••• IIIenIIy becomes a party to the contracIuaI proyisions of the 1nsIru1'll8ll1s.
FiMncIII •••••
InIIIINCa ••••• MIl •••••••••••

AI finlIlciIi •••• In I8COgIIised iniIiaiIyat fair value. However. in the case of finlI1ciaI assets not I9COrded at fair value ttvough prolitor
loss. lIalSlClion CDlllII18t In atIrIluIable 10 the acquisiIion of lie tirun:ial asset In also added 10 the cost of the financial asset.
Pwdlases or" ofinancili IISeIB Il8I AIqUire delively of assets wilhin 8 tine frlIne eslabiishId by I8gUialion or convention in lhe
malretpllce( •• wayll'8des) In RIOllIJIlisedon the trade date, i.e.,thedalethatthe~ commils 10purchase orsel the asset.•.......•.•---
For JU'IlO6llI of SI••••••• lIlllISlnRlllRt finIIlC:iaIassels In classified on the basis d their contracIu8I cash flow chaI &cae!islies and
theentity'sbusiness modeiofllBllging!hem.
FIIlIIICiaIIIIlIIB •• cIassiIed inIo •• ilikJwing adBgoIies:
• Debt inAumenI& IIlIlnortised cost
• Debt inINMI* at fair YlIiue hough olher CIDIllplehensive income (FVTOCI)
• Debt •••••••• ~ and equily Inm.rnRs at fair YlIiue hough profit or loss (FVTPl)
• EcIulY inAumenI& measured at fair YlIiue tvough oller ~ income (FVTOCI)
DIIIt ~ III11101ti11d coli
The eo...., ciIIIlliIes 8 debt insInInlI1t as at amortised cost, if boll the foIowing COlIdiliolIS•• met:
a) The 8IIIIt II hIId wilhin 8 ••••••• modei whose objective Is 10 hold assets for coiIecling conlrlIduaI cash 1Iows; and
b) CoIncUIItInnI of ••••• giwe rise on speciIied __ 10 cash tIows that In Soieiy P..,.menls of PrinclpaI and Interest

(SPPI) an lie princIpai ImlU1t custII1ding.
Such •••••••• n SI••••• 1Illl8SInd at amortised cost using the elJectiwl int8rest I'IIIe (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
cak:l ••• ." I8Idng inIo 8CICIlUIlBnf discol.d or premUn on acquisition and fees or costs that arellllnl8gral part of the SR. The EIR
••••••••• lIitciuded in finance income in lie profitorloss. The IDsses aising from i\1)ainnenln AlCOlJIIisedin the profit or loss.



Debt Instrument at MOCI
The Company classifies a debt instrument at FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria are met
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contrae.1Ual cash flows and selling the financial assels, and
b) The assers conIradual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the MOO category are measured as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
I8llOgI1ized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes finance income, impainnent losses and
nwersaIs and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss statement On derecognition of the asse~ cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding MOCI debt instrument is
reported as interest illCOltle using the EIR method. .
Debt Instrument at FVTPL

The Company classifies all debt instruments, which do not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortiZed cost or as FVTOCI, as at
FVTPL
Debt instruments included within the FVTPl category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.
equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at
FVTPL. Where the Company makes an irrevocable election of classifying the equity instruments at FVTOCI, it recognises all subsequent
changes in the fair value in OCI, without any recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and foss, even on sale of such investments.
Equity instruments included within the FVTPlcategory are measured atfairvalue with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.
F"mancial assets are measured at FVTPl except for those financial assets whose contractual tenns give rise to cash flows on specified
dales that represents SPPI, are measured as detailed below depending on the business model:

Classification Nameofthe financialasset
Amortised cost Trade receivables, loans given to employees and others, deposits, interest receivable, unbilled

revenue and other advances recoverable in cash.
MOCI Equity investments in companies other than subsidiaries and associates if an option exercised at

the time of initial recognition.
FVTPl Other investments in equity instruments, mutual funds, forward exchange contracts

(to the extent not designated as a hedging instrument).
o.cognlt\on
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash ftows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
lnrlsferred substantially" the risks and rewards of the ~ or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially a" the risks and rewards of the ~ but has transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
UstantiaIy all of the risks and rewards of the asse~ nor transferred control of the asse~ the Company continues to recognise the
lnInsferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
1lIblIity. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Conlinuinginvolvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
lIllOUOtofthe asset and the maximum amount of consideration thatthe Company could be required to repay.

~offlnanclalassets
In accordance with lnetAS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECl) model for measurement and recognition of impainnent
loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:



a) Finln:ial assets that n debt inslruments, and n measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, receivables
and blIlk baIln:e.

b) Finln:ial assets thatn debtinstrumenls and are measured at MOCI
c) Trade receivables or any contradual ~ht to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transaclions that are within

thescopeoflndAS 11 andlndAS 18.
The Company foIows 'simpIi/ied approach' for recognllion of impairment loss allowance on:
• Trade AlOeivabIes or contract revenue receivables; and
• All lease receivables resullDd from transactions wilhin the scope of Ind AS 17
The appIicalion of~ approach does not require 1heCompany to track cha~ in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss (Ea.) at each reporting date, ~ht from its inItiaIl8CO!Jnition.
For reoognIion of impairment Joss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the ~y delermines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased signIlicantIy, 12 months ECL is used to provide
for impainnent loss. However, if credit risk has increased signilicanly,lifeIime ECl is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of Ule
inslrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since inltiII recognition, then the entity reverts 10
recognising impairment loss aRowance based on 12-monttl ECL.
Lifetime Ea.n the expected credit losses resulting from all possI)Ie default ewnls 0\lEIl' the expected life of a financial instrument The 12
RlOIlths ECLis a portion of the lifetime ECl which results from default events that are posslblewithln 12 months after the reporting date.
ECl is the dilferenoe between all conIractuaI cash flows that are due to the Company In aooordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (I.e., 811cash shortfalls), discounted at the ~ SR. When estimaling the cash flows, Itle
~ considers all conwactual terms of lie financiallnstrument (including prepayment..exI8nIion, call and sitMar options) over the
expected life of 1hefinancial instrument and Cash flows from the sale of coIIaler&I held or GIber credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
ECl allowance (or reversal) rea:Jgnized during the period is recognized as incomeIlllql8I1S8ln lie statement of profit and loss. This
8RlOIIlt is reIIected under the head 'other expenses' in the profit and loss. The b8Iance sheet presentation of ECl for various finIInci8I
instruments is desaibed below:
• Flnlnc:ial nuts measured II at lIIIIOI1IIed coat, COldractuaI revenue •••• 1.. and lease receivables : ECL is

preseNed as an allowance, which reduces the net carryiog amount. Until the 8868t meets writfHlff criteria, the Company does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount

• Debt InItrumentl lIIIIIurad at FVTOCI : Since financial assets are already I9IlecIed at fair value, Impairment allowance is
notfurlheneducedfrom IIsvtlue. Rather, ECLamountis presented 8S 'accumuIatsd impairment amounf in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and in1lairment loss, the company combines financial inslNments on the basis of shared credit risk
chncterislics with the objecM of faciIitaling an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on
a timely baIis.
For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on individual basis at each reporting date. Other financial assets llI8
assessed coIectiYeIy in lJIOUPSthat share simlIar crad"1trisk characterislies. Accordingly, lie impairment testing is done on the following basis:
NIIReof the finlRcllllllet Impairment T8Itl1lll MeIhodoIogy

Trade Receiv8bles Expected Cnldit Loss model (Ea.) is applied. The ECL over lifetime of the assets are estimated by
using a provision rnaIrix which is based on historical loss rates reflecting current conditions 8IJl
forecasls of future economic conditions which ere grouped on the basis of similar crecIit
ch81acteI istics such as nature of industry, customer 88IJIl1llfll, past due status and other factors lhet
are relevant lD astimat8 the expected cash loss from these 8S88Is.

Other financial assets VVhen the credit risk hes not incntased significanlly, '2 month ECl is used to provide for impairment
Joss. When there is significant change in credit risk since initial recognition, the impainnent is
measured based on probability of delault over the life time. If, in a sUbsequent period, credit quality
of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on
12 month ECL.



FinancialliabUilies
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL and as at amortised cost.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cos1s that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance cos1s in the statement of profit and loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.

The measurement offinancialliabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

financial liabilities at FVTPL

Frnancialliabilities at FVTPL Include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading, if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
nearterm. .

GIins orlosses on liabilies held fortrading are recognised in the profit or loss.

For Dabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains! losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recogniZed in OCI. These gainsl
loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
otherchanges in fair value ofsuch liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Clanlfication Name of the financial liability

Amortised cost Borrowings, Trade payables, Interest acaued, Unclaimed I Disputed dividends, Security deposits and other
financial liabilities not for trading.

MPl Foreign exchange Forward contracIs being derivative contracls do not qualify for hedge accounting under
Ind AS 109 and other financial liabilities held for trading.

loins and bonowtngs

Aft« inilIaI recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the iabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

FInInclaI guarantee c:ontrIc:tI
A fi\enciaI glllll'8ntee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtorfails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument

FIn8nciaI guarantee contracIs issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at fair value
IIough profit or loss, are subsequently measured at higher of (i) The amount of loss allowance datermined in accordance with
1mpein1811l requirements of Ind AS 109 - Rnanciallnstruments and (ii) The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
CU'IlIlaIiYe amountofincome recognised in accordance with the principles of IndAS 18- Revenue.

OWlcDgllllion offlnanclaJ Uabllitles

AIr&1ciaIIabiIily is derecognlsed when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
""is IepIaced by another from the same lender on substantially different tenns, or the tenns eX an existing Dability are substantially-..ct.such an exchange or modilicallon is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The

.•••• in the respective carrying lI'IlOUllts is recognlsed in the statement of profit or loss.
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I) BorrowIngCosts

Borrowing cost include interest computed using Effective Interest Rate method and amortisation of ancillary costs incurred

Borrowing costs that are direcUy attributable to the acquisition. construction, production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. The Company determines the amount of
borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation by applying capitalisation rate to the expenditure incurred on such cost The capitaJisation rate is
determined based on the weighted average rate of borrowing cost applicable to the borrowings of the Company which are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing cost that
1he Company capitalises during the period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other
borrowings costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Interest income eamed on the temporary investment of SpecifIC borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

D TlXes
Current Income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the
countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity;. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum Altemate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to
future tax liability, is recognisedas an asset viz. MAT Credit Entitlement, to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will
pay norrnallricome tax and it is highly probable that future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company during the
specified period. The Company reviews the 'MAT Credit Entitlemenf at each Balance Sheet date and writes down the carrying
amount of the same to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal Income tax dUring
1hespecified period.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
cerrying MlOUnts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

DeJemld tax iabilities are recognised for au taxable temporary differences.

DIIBn8d tax assets n recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
tIImparary difI'et 81ICeS, end the carty forward of unused tax credits end unused tax losses can be utilised. Where there is deferred tax
•• arising from carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax created, they are recognised to the extent of deferred tax liability.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
IIa'IIcIent taxable profit wiDbe available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
,aeessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

DeJemld tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
IlIbiIily is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

D8remld tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
orin equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or direcUy in equity.

Dererred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
JablIilies and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.



k) Retirement Ind other employee benefits
Short·term employee benefits

A liability Is recognised for short-term employee benefit in the period the related servioe is rendet'ed at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

DefIned contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the fonn of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense,
when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a fiability after deducting the contribution
ahady paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribulion due for services received before the balance sheet date, then
excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment wiD lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash
refund.

DefIned benefit plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered
fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefrt plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the eIfecl of the asset ceiHng, excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit Dability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in nel interest on the net defined benefit
Iiabily), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the
petIod In which Ileyoccur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated absences
The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are non-accumulating In nature and are settled within 12 months after the
end of the teporIing period In which the employees render the related service. As it is settled within 12 months and are non accumulating,
provision In the books is made on accrual basis.

OIherlong term employee benefits

Uabililies recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date.

I) Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of
the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arrangement conveys 8right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement

For arrangements entered In&oprior1oApril1, 2016, the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain lease on the basis of
fads and c:ircumstances existing on the date of transition.

A lease that transfers subs1antially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a fmance lease. All
other leases are operating leases.

FInance leases n capilaIiIed at the commencement of the Lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the
IJf888IlI value of !he nininun Iuse paymenIs. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
IabiIlly so as to echieYe 8 constant rate of Interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance
cos1s in lh8 slaIiement of profit and loss, w1Iess they are direcIly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in
accordance with the Company's general policy on the b()rrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognlsed as expenses in the periods in
which they are incuned.

A leased asset is depreciat8d aver the usefuf lite of the asset However, If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company wiD obtain
ownership by the and of the lease term, Ihe asset is deprec:iRId aver the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.



.) Impalnnent of non financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the assefs recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cashiJenerating unifs (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
oItler assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

II) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset
ProvIsions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (leg al or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits wiD be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

Provisklns are discounted, if the effect of the time value of money is material, using pre-tax rates that reflects the risks specific to the
lability. When discounting is used, an increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. These
provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Necessary provision for doubtful debts, claims, etc., are made, if realisation of money is doubtful in the judgement of the management.

ConIIfttwltIiablllties
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
llCl:UIl8I1ceofone or morellnoertain futlJre events beyond tn, control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because
• is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required ., settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases

.•••• lhere is a liablltythat cannotbe recognized because l.C8Mot. measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are disclosed separately.
Show cause notices issued by various Government authorities are considered for evaluation of contingent liabilities only when converted
imdemand.
ConIIngentassets
Where 811Inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company discloses a brief description of the nature of the contingent assets at the
end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their financial effect.

ConIingent assets are disclosed but not recognised in the fil!lJncial statements.

_and cashequivalents
. CIsh 00II1lriSeS cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances with original maturity of less
1 •• 3 months, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash, which are subject to insiJnilicant risk of changes in value.

LClih Flow Statement
1
i ~Cllhllows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit I (loss) before tax is adjusted fortheetreds of transactions of non-cash

: !.••••end enydeferrals or acauaIs of past orMure cash ~ts or payments.

''r'Bri borrowings are generally considered to be financing acIivities. However, where bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
,\·fDIm 8I11nlegra1part of an enIily's cash management bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
;. PIJPll680fCash fIowstatemenl
I· ••••••• per ••••
i..111I besic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
) ••• numberofequityshares outstanding during the period.

,[ ·.0iUId EPS is ~ by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average numberofequityshares considered for deriving basic
•.{EP$ end also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dnulive potential equity

••••• DiIutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. DUutive
.')l*InIIet eqdly shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive
.".,sh8resare adjusted forbonus shares, as appropriate



Notes to FInancial StMemenls for the year ended March 31, 2018
4. Property, plant and equIpment

Tangible As.ets

Particulars Plant and Electrical OffIce
Fumltunt

Land BUildings Machinery Machinery Computer EquIpment and Tools Vehlcl. Total
Fittings

Deemed Cost. alAprli 1, 2018 1,985.88 408.89 973.92 105.53 4.51 0.22 5.67 2.06 5.28 3,491.94

Additions - 2.22 63.93 53.72 0.30 0.56 0.71 - 0.17 121.61
DIsposals - - (3.78) - - - - - (0.01) (3.79)
100 AS adjustments - - - - - - - - - -

Cost. at March 31, 2017 1,185.81 411.11 1,034.07 159.25 4.81 0.71 8.38 2.08 5.44 3,601.78
Additions - - 6.50 20.96 1.00 0.12 - - 8.28 36.86
Disposals - - (2.15) - - - - - (0.82) (2.97)
100 AS adjustments - - - - - - - - - -

Cost uat March 31, 2018 1,985.88 411.11 1,038.42 180.21 5.81 0.80 8.38 2.08 12.90 3,843.65
DeprsclationiAmortlsation

Charge for the year - 20.49 389.49 43.48 0.69 0.07 0.84 0.18 0.60 455.84
Disposals - - - - - - - - - -

As at March 31, 2017 - 20.49 389.49 43.48 0.89 0.07 0.84 0.18 0.80 455.84
Charge for the year - 20.45 195.39 31.70 1.17 0.16 0.87 0.18 0.96 250.88
IndAS Adjustments - - - - - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - - - - - -

As at March 31, 2018 - 40.94 584.88 75.18 1.88 0.23 1.71 0.38 1.56 706.72
Net Block

AsatApn11,2016 1,985.86 408.89 973.92 105.53 4.51 0.22 5.67 2.06 5.28 3,491.94
As at March31, 2017 1,985.86 390.62 644.58 115.77 4.12 0.71 5.54 1.88 4.84 3,153.92
As at March31, 2018 1,985.86 370.17 453.54 105.03 3.95 0.67 4.67 1.70 11.34 2,936.93



As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017

As at
April 1, 2016

CapItal Work-In-progress
CapIaI work in progress 4.62

4.62
41.64
41.64

IIoIH:unvnt Invesbnents
Investmentsin companies at FVTOCI

L Investments in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
10,600 equity shares (previous year 10,600) of Rs 10
each in Indian Overseas Bank fully paid up 1.94

I Investments in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
1,500 equity shares (previous year 1,500) of Rs 10 each
in Suryadev Alloys and Power Private Limited

7,04,221 equity shares of Rs. 101- each (previous year - Nil)
inArkay Energy (Rameswaram) Limited 70.42

72.36

2.96 3.22

2.04 2.04

5.00 5.26

2.96 3.22
2.96 3.22
2.04 2.04

Teal non-current investments
~ amount of quoted investments
Aggregatemarket value of quoted investments
Aggregatecost of unquoted investments
Aggregateamount of impairment in value of investments

IOIher non- cunvnt financial assets
. J,InIecured, considered good)
.!IIcurity Deposits

1.94
1.94

70.42

41.42
41.42

43.93
43.93

76.74
76.74

142.89 183.11 278.69
24.53 22.78 14.74
11.91 11.93 10.26
68.34 25.82 (75.72)
(27.31) (22.65) (15.38)
220.36 220.99 212.59

220.37 220.99 212.59
78.72 78.72 81.39

299.09 299.71 293.98

78.94 61.47 105.63
0.95 0.10 1.09---- 61.57 106.7279.89



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 Re.ln Lakhs

Particulars As at As at Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

10 Inventories
Raw Materials 2,539.92 1,922.63 1,190.90
Process Stock 388.32 348.35 371.45
Finished products 2,510.10 2,163.89 3,033.71
Stores and spares 147.55 105.64 126.75
waste 61.42 44.74 12.41

5,647.31 4,585.25 4,735.22
Inventory comprise of
Raw Materials
Cotton 2,539.92 1,922.63 1,190.90

2,539.92 1,922.63 1,190.90

Work In progress
Work in progress 388.32 348.35 371.45

388.32 348.35 371.45

Finished Goods
Yam 2,510.10 2,163.89 3,033.71

2,510.10 2,163.89 3,033.71

11 Trade receivables
(Unsecured, considered good)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months

from due date of payment 31.27 40.31 60.63
Other debts 2,044.28 1,871.15 1,683.77

2,075.55 1,911.46 1,744.40
Allowance for expected credit loss (9.53) (1.89) (0.12)

2,066.02 1,909.57 1,744.28
2,066.02 1,909.57 1,744.28

12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash- on- Hand 0.67 0.40 1.85
Balances with Banks In Current Account 29.65 111.77 33.22

30.32 112.17 35.07

13 Other Bank Balances
In Margin money with Banks 198.36 178.81 137.72

198.36 178.81 137.72

14 Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
TUF Subsidy Receivable 0.18 3.65
Hank Yam Obligation Receivable 2.14 1.93 1.60
Interest accrued on Deposits 5.74 3.08 1.17
Prepaid expenses 22.37 14.95 22.32
Balance with Excise department, Sales Tax ete 16.26 0.48 0.51
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 5.92 19.08 14.17
Advance for puchases 136.60 125.46 41.70

189.03 165.16 85.12



As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017

As at
April 1, 2016

Capital
AuIhorised Share Capital
43,00,000Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 430.00 430.00 430.00

430.00 430.00 430.00

430.00 430.00 430.00
430.00 430.00 430.00

430.00 430.00 430.00
1.36 1.36 1.36

428.64 428.64 428.64

IIsued Share Capital
43,00,000Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

SUbKr1bed and fully paid up share capital
43,00,000Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
t..s :Calls in arrears

•...:
at fteconcmation of number of equity .ha •••• subscrtlDed

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add : Issued during the year

••• She•• issued for consideration other than cash
There are no shares which have been issued for consideration other than cash during the last 5 years.

Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total ••••••• capital

••••••• of the shareholder No. of shares

2018 % 2017 % 2016 ,%

Shri P. Palaniappan (HUF) 619,5'1 14A1 618,162 14.37 617,161 "4.~5
eM. P.Umayal 1,036,343 IUO 1,036,343 24.10 1,036,343 24.1t>

..•Smt. Geethanjali Ramasamy 398,981 I.• 398,981 9.28 398,981 9.28
6hri Rajubhandari 336,300 7.82 264,444 6.15 230,268 5.36

RIghts, preferences and restrictions In respect of equity shares Issued by the Company

'the company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. The equity shares 'ofthe
Qlmpany having par value of RS.10/· rank pari-passu in all respects including voting rights and entitlement to

.~. Thedividend proposed Ifany, by the Board of Dlrectors, issubject to the approval of the shareholders inthe
eMUingAnnual General Meeting.



Asat
April 1,2016

659.65
1.68

978.61
1,639.94

659.65
659.65

1,615.08
669.21

2,928.17

* There Is no case of continuing default as on the balance sheet date In repayment of loans and Interest

Term loans and non fund limits from Indian Overseas Bank are secured by first charge on entire block of assets,
both present and future and the Company's Managing Director and Chairman have given personal guarantees
for the above loans to the extent of Rs 17.29 Crores.

18 Other non current ftnanclaillablUtles
Inter corporate Deposits 890.57 659.98 632.60
Deferred income 19.69 34.79 54.71
Unamortised interest income 647.73 739.26 830.79

1,667.89 1,434.03 1,518.10

19 Provisions (Non-cunent)
Provision towards Gratuity 72.78 61.40 38.53

72.78 61.40 38.53



As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

As at
April 1, 2016

Cash credit facility** 1,629.05 1,546.12 1,394.94
Acceptances 1,519.58 1,319.08 1,883.61

Unsecured
Loans from directors 1,300.73

4,449.36 2,865.20 3,278.55

•• Working capital limits from Indian Overseas Bank are secured by first charge on entire block of assets, both
present and future and the Company's Managing Director and Chairman have given personal guarantees for
the above loans to the extent of Rs. 17.29 Crores .

..Tnlde payables
:J~pue to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises**

Others
4.22

764.84
769.06

0.89
295.16
296.05

1.79
373.26
375.05

••• Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified
on the basis of information collected by the management represents the principal amount payable to these
enterprises. There are no interest due and outstanding as at the reporting date. Please refer note 39.

cUI1'8nt liabilities
nt maturities of long-term debt 196.60 197.76 267.02

ry Dues Payable 10.54 78.47 60.15
yee benefits payable 4.42 5.25 0.38

s for expenses 364.27 330.59 197.77
for other finance 35.47 65.48 11.90

611.30 677.55 537.22

0.31 0.40 0.33
8.39 12.33 9.16
8.70 12.73 9.49



Rs. In Lakhs

For the year ended Forthe yearended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

24 Revenue from Operations
Sale of Products
Yam
Fabric
Waste
Total

25 Other Income
Interest Income

, Profit on sale of Fixed Assets
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation
Miscellaneous Receipts

15,335,55 15,445.68
257.72 1,268.22
138.07 128.23

15,731.34 16,842.13

102.36 105.55
0.34 4.61
1.70 59.83

40.59 32.84
144.99 202.83

1,922.63 1,190.90
11,378.75 10,903.11
13,301.38 12,094.01

(2,639.92) (1,922.63)
10,761.46 10,171.38

2,163.89 3,033.71
348.35 371.45
44.74 12.41

2,556.98 3,417.57

2,510.10 2,163.89
388.32 348.35

61.42 44.74
2,959.84 2,556.98

(402.86) 860.59

1,693.33 1,826.19

1,145.17 1,060.41
61.88 42.96

129.44 155.34
30.76 30.75

1,367.24 1,289.46

238.06 263.72
62.20 105.65
36.59 34.07
45.89 48.14
68.07 62.11

450.81 513.69

26 Cost of Materials Consumed
Opening Stock
Raw Material - Cotton
Add: Purchases

Less: Closing Stock
Raw Material - Cotton

27 Changes In Inventories of work-ln-progress, stock In trade and finished goods
Opening Balance
Finished Goods - Yam
Process Stock
waste

Closing Balance
Finished Goods - Yam
Process Stock
waste

28 Power and Diesel Consumed
29 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to Provident and other funds
welfare Expenses
Managerial Remuneration

30 Finance costa
Interest Expenses
On Bank Loans
On Loan from Directors
On Intercorporate deposits
On Others
On Preference Shares



"!
i,Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended' March 31, 2018

PartJculars

Rs.ln Lakhs

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March31, 2017

•• Depreciation and amortization expense
, Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

~.' Other expenses
>' Repairs to Buildings
. Repairs to Machinery

Repairs to Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes, eXcluding taxes on income
Legal and Professional Charges

"FIng Fees
:,:'erokerage & Commission

:i" Auditors Remuneration
,; .SIIlng Fees
Z;'; . Rent Paid

,Foreign exchange f1uduation
~",8ank Charges
;~,: lAase Rent
:. Conversion charges
:; .MIsoeUaneous expenses

','At>"
"',,'

250.88 455.84
250.88 455.84

579.61 502.14
177.08 181.44
756.69 683.58

46.76 128.79
124.95 86.69
142.87 136.21

12.18 11.43
18.37 35.25
23.04 14.09

0.16 0.25
137.34 160.16

1.04 2.47
0.81 0.86
8.81 7.44
5.50

18.40 53.50
150.00 150.00
147.59 248.70
90.31 99.58

928.13 1,135.42

1.00 0.98
0.28

0.04 0.85
0.36

1.04 2.47

stores and Spares
Consumption of stores and spare parts

: " Consumption of packing materials

Payment to auditors
Audltfees
Tax Matters

, CerIific::ate Fees
;, Travelling Expenses

tax expense
,,>te) Income tax expense
, Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year
MAT credit entitlement/reversal
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
Total current tax expense

Deferred tax
Deferred tax adjustments (0.38)
Total deferred tax expense!(beneflt) (0.38)
Income tax expense (0.38)
The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax from continuing operations 70.66
Income tax expense calculated at 30.9% (2016-17: 30.9%) 21.83
Elect of expenses that are not dedudible in determining taxable profit (21.83)
Income tax expense

6.16
(6.16)
(8.83)
(8.83)

4.42
4.42
(4.41)

108.81
33.62
(24.79)

8.83



Rs. In Lakhs

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March31, 2017

(c) Income tax recognlsed In other comprehensive Income
Deferred tax
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation
Total Income tax recognised In other comprehensive Income

(d) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2018

Deferred tax (liablllties)/assets Opening Recognlsed In Recognlsed In Other
In relation to: balance profit or loss comprehensiveIncome

Property, plant, and equipment and
Intangible Assets

Expenses allowable on payment basis
under the Income TaxAct

Remeasurement of financial instruments
underlndAS

Other temporary differences (22.65)
220.99

MAT Credit entitlement 78.72
Total 29'.71 0.31

(e) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2017

Deferred tax (lIablllties)/assets Opening RecognlHd In RecOfnlaeclIn Other
In relation to: balance profit or loss ~.Ive

Property, plant, and equipment and
Intangible Assets

Expenses allowable on payment basis
under the Income TaxAct

Remeasurement of financial instruments
under IndAS

Other temporary differences

(75.72)

303.69

(15.38)
212.59

81.39
293.98

MAT Credit entitlement
Total

35 Earnings per share
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
Basic eamings per share (Rs)
Diluted eamings per share (Rs)

36 Expenditure In foreign currency
Royalty
Sales Commission
Professional and Consultancy Fees
Others

37 Amount remitted during the year In foreign currencies
Number of Non-Resident Shareholders
Number of shares held by them
On account of dividends
Year to which dividend relates

(1.00)
(1.00)

(1.92)
0.38

4.00
4.00

Closing
balance

68.34

177.60

(1.00)
(24.57)

220.37
78.72

299.09

Closing
balance

25.82

217.82

(22.65)
220.99

78.72
299.71

104.40
4,286,400

2.44
2.44

5.00
2,647.00

(7.27)
4.42
(2.67)
1.75

71.04
4,286,400

1.66
1.66

8.00
4,048.00
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: ••••• to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 Rs. in Lakhs
For the year ended Forthe yearended

March 31, 2018 March31,2017

Earnings In foreign exchange
&port of goods on FOB Basis
DIsclosures required by the Micro, Sma" and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED)
Act, 2806 are as under
The infonnation required to disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises Development Act,2006 has
'beendetermined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the information available with the
Company.There are no overdues to parties on accounts of principal amount and I or interest and accordingly no
IllIdItIonaIdisclosures have been made.

~..C8mmlbnents and contingent liability
CoIItI."t Uabllity
1. Conttftgent Liability

In respect of outstanding export obligation to export goods worth
Rs. 3053.06 Lakhs under EPCG Scheme in repect of various years
from 2009, the company has fulfilled obligation to the extent of
The Bank has given guarantees for towards payment of customs
duty in respect of import of machinery
Future Lease Payments

CIlpItaI Commitments
EstimatedValue of Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital
Accountand not provided for
•••• of Imports : CIF Value
••• Material 2,156.71 3,835.56
Componentsand Spare Parts 71.15 52.08
v.au. of Imported and indigenous Raw materials, Packing materials consumed and Consumable Spares
during the financial year and the percentage of each to the total consumption

For the yearended
March31,2018

Value Percentage(%)
2,156.71 20.04
8,604.74 79.96

10,761.45 100.00
Value Percentage(%)
71.15 9.40

685.54 90.60
756.69 100.00

\_ and Packing Materials
Imported

t .mdigenous

53.96
37.50

54.02
50.00

Fortheyearended
March31,2017

Value
3,925.45
6,245.93

10,171.38
Value
52.08

631.49
683.57

Percentage(%)
38.59
61.41

100.00
Percentage(%)

7.62
92.38

100.00
~ng Segments
As the Company's business activity primarily falls within a single business and geographical segment, there are
• additional disclosures to be provided under Accounting Standard - 17 "Segment Reporting", other than those

y provided in the financial statements.
9 lease arrangements

Company has taken the entire Fixed Assets of Supreme Yarn Spinners Limited under cancelable operating
, which are normally renewed on expiry.

L.essee
Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for certain facilities.
leases are cancellable at the option of either party to lease and may be

based on mutual agreement of the parties.
payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 150.00 150.00



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
As at

March 31,2018
As at

March 31,2017

Rs. in Lakhs

As at
April 1,2016

45 Financial Instruments
Capital management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue as going concern,
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product
and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity, long term and other short-term
borrowings.
For the purposes of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.
Gearing Ratio:
Debt
Less: Cash and bank balances
Net debt
Total equity
Net debt to equity ratio (%)
Categories of Financial Instruments
Financial assets
a. Measured at amortised cost

Other non-current financial assets 41.42
Trade receivables 2,066.02
Cash and cash equivalents 30.32
Bank balances other than above 198.36

b. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTOCI)
, Investments 04 72.36

-Financial liabilities
a. Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings (non current)
Borrowings (current)
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

b. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Derivative instruments

Financial risk management objectives
The treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and intemational financial markets,
monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by
degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using natural hedging financial instruments to hedge risk
exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Company's policies approved by the board of directors, which
provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, the use of financial derivatives, and the investment of excess liquidity. The
Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in
the price of a financial instrument. The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company actively manages its currency and interest rate exposures through its
finance division ano uses derivative instruments such as forward contracts and currency swaps, wherever required, to mitigate
the risks from such exposures. The use of derivative instruments is subject to limits and regular monitoring by appropriate levels
of management.
Foreign currency risk management
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise. The Company actively manages its currency rate exposures through a centralised treasury division and uses
natural hedging principles to mitigate the risks from such exposures. The use of derivative instruments, if any, is subject to limits
and regular monitoring by appropriate levels of management. The Company has not used any derivatives.

March 31, 2018
1,861.08

228.68
1.632.40
2,230.56
73.18%

1,861.08
4,449.36

769.06

March 31, 2017
3,014.35

290.98
2,723.37
2,158.40
126.18%

43.93
1,909.57

112.17
178.81

3,014.35
2,865.20

296.05

April 1,2016
2,928.17

172.79
2,755.38
2,068.58
133.20%

76.74
1,744.28

35.07
137.72

2,928.17
3,278.55

375.05



DI.clo.urt of hedged and unhtdgtd fortlg" ourrtnoy txpo.uro
The c.mylng IImountl of the CompanY'1foreign currencydenominatedmonttary al.etl Ind monetarylIabUIUt.It tha and of tht roportlngportod11'0 III followl:
A. on MarCh 31, 201. (all amount. ar.ln .qulval.nt "'.In I.kh.)

L.llbllltit. Alllta Ntt ovartll
- - - expo.ure on tho

Currency Gro., Expo.urt Net nlblnty Grot. Expoaurt N.t •••• t currency· net
•• po,ure h.dged lolling ,xpolure on 'XpoIure h.dgtd ullng .xpoaure on ••••t.,

derlvltlv •• the currency dtrlvatlv •• the currency (net IIlbllltl.,)

uso 10.22 - 10.22 - - - (10.22)
EUR - .. - - - - -
In INk 665.49 .. 885.49 - .. - (665.49)

L.labllItle. , A•• etl Netoverell
exposure on the

Currency Gross Expolure Net liability Gro•• Expo.ure Ntt •••• t currency· net
exposure h.dged lolling expolure on expolure h.dg.d using expolure on a•• ets'

d.rlvatlves the currency derlvativ•• the currency (net liabilities)

USO 20.32 - 20.32 - .. - (20.32)
EUR - - - 0.03 - 0.03 0.03
In INR 1,319.08 - 1,319.08 2.08 - 2.08 (1,317.00)

L.labllItles Alsets Net overell
exposure on the

Currency Gross Exposure Net liability Gross Exposure Net asset currency· net
exposure hedged using exposure on exposure hedged using exposure on assets 1

derivatives the currency derivatives the currency (net liabilities)

USD 15.12 - 15.12 - - - (15.12)
EUR - - - - - - -
In INR 1,002.55 - 1,002.55 - - - (1,002.55)



Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Movement in the functional currencies of the various operations of the Company against major foreign currencies may
impact the Company's revenues from its operations. Any weakening of the functional currency may impact the
Company's cost of imports and cost of borrowings and consequently may increase the cost of financing the Company's
capital expenditures. The foreign exchange rate sensitMty is calculated for each currency by aggregation of the net
foreign exchange rate exposure of a currency and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates shift in the foreign
exchange rates of each currency by 2%, which represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 2% change in foreign currency rates.

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because it borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is
managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings and by the use
of interest rate swap contracts. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk
appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hedging strategies are applied. Further, in appropriate cases, the Company
also effects changes in the borrowing arrangements to convert floating interest rates to fixed interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A
25 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents managemenfs assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

The 25 basis point interest rate c:h'anges will impact the profitability by INR 9.26 Lakhs for the year (Previous ,r;tR 7.31
Lakhs)

Credit risk management

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a customer contract or financial
instrument, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade
receivables and from its financing! investing activities, including deposits with banks, mutual fund investments,
investments in debt securities and foreign exchange transactions. The Company has no significant concentration of
credit risk with any counterparty.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure is the total of
the carrying amount of balances with banks, short term deposits with banks, trade receivables, margin money and other
financial assets excluding equity investments.

(a) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit evaluation policy for each
customer and, based on the evaluation, credit limit of each customer is defined. Wherever the Company assesses the
credit risk as high-,the exposure is backed by either bank, guarantee/letter of creditor security deposits / post dated cheques.

The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. As per simplified approach, the
Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of
default in payments and makes appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period
and involves higher risk.

(b) Investments, Derivative Instruments, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank Deposits

Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits with the bankslfinancial institutions is generally low as the said
deposits have been made with the bankslfinancial institutions, who have been assigned high credit rating by
intemational and domestic rating agencies.



..~ Risk on Derivative Instruments is generally low as the Company enters into the Derivative Contracts with the
"Puled Banks.

,·lnvestments of surplus funds are made only with approved financial institutions! counterparty. Investments primarily
llc:Iude bank deposits, investment in units of quoted mutual funds issued by high investment grade funds etc. These

';cJlankdeposits, mutual funds and counterparties have low credit risk. The Company has standard operating procedures
(';f!Id investment policy for deployment of surplus liquidity, which allows investment in bank deposits, debt securities andr 'mutual fund schemes of debt and arbitrage categories and restricts the exposure in equity markets.

'()ffsettlng related disclosures

" Otrsetting of cash and cash equivalents to borrowings as per the consortium agreement is available only to the bank in
{ lie event of a default. Company does not have the right to offset in case of the counter party's bankruptcy, therefore,

lhesedisclosures are not required.

, LIquidity risk management

Uquldlty risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk
, management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The
.~y invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and mutual funds, which carry minimal mark to market risks. The
Company also constantly monitors funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintaining
'linancial flexibility.

\ ,1JquidIty tables

. following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for Its non-derivative financial liabilities with
''IIf88d repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
lllillled on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

Due In Due In 2nd to Due after Carrying
1st year 5th year 5th year amount

;lft8de payabies 769.06 769.06
s (including interest accrued

thereon upto the reporting date) 196.60 786.40 1,074.68 2,057.68
965.66 786.40 1,074.68 2,826.74

Due In Due in 2nd to Due after Carrying
1st year 5th year 5th year amount

payables 296.05 296.05
(rncluding interest accrued

thereon upto the reporting date) 197.76 791.04 2,223.31 3,212.11
493.81 791.04 2,223.31 3,508.16

Due In Due In 2nd to Due after Carrying
1st year 5th year 5th year amount

payables 375.05 375.05
(including interest accrued

Itlefeon upto the reporting date) 267.02 1,068.08 1,860.09 3,195.19
642.07 1,068.08 1,860.09 3,570.24

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

value of financial assets and financial liabilities
•• not measured at fair value (but fair value

are reqUired) : Nil Nil Nil
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46 Related party disclosure

a) List of parties having significant Influence
Enterprises in which KMP along with their
relatives have significant influence

Key management personnel

Supreme Yarn Spinners Ltd
Raja Yams Private Limited

Smt. P.Urnayal, Chainnan cum Managing Director
Shri P.Palaniappan, Managing Director
Sri. A.Subramanian (CFO)
Miss.Sarita Jain.G (Company Secretary)

Smt. Geethanjali Ramasamy
Shri MC.Ramasamy
Shri P.Palaniappan (HUF)
Shri MC.Ramasamy (HUF)

S.No. Nature of transactions Amount
2117-18 2015-17

1. Corporate Loan taken
Raja Yams Private Limited 73.91 23.45
Supreme Yam SpiMefs'L.imIted 241.00 75.00

2. Corporate Loan Repaid
Raja Yams PFivate Limited 16.32 14.07
Supreme ¥am SpinnersLimlt8d 75.00 57'.00

3. Unsecured .Lean.:taken

, Shri P.RaIaf!iappan 11.25 261.19
SmlP.lJmayal 261.46 41.17

4. Unsecured Loan Repaid
Shri P.Palaniappan 71.42 60.77
Smt.P;Umayal 38.58 9.47

5. Rendering,ofSeNkes
Supreme Yam Spinners Ltd 1.66 1.77

6. lease Rent Paid
Supreme Yam 6plMers Ud 150.00 150.00

7. Managerial Rem'IJ18rHon
Shri P.Palaftiappan 15.37 15.46
Smt. P.-Urrayal 15.38 15.29
Sri. A.S8bIamaAian 3;15 2.92
Miss.SarlaJain .G 2,40 0.12

B. 1nterest Paid on UnseewredL~
Raja Yams PlilfatB .Limited 29.16 26.79
Supreme Yam Spiulers LimIed 1.43 7.27
Shri P.Palaniappan 20.01 144.89
Smt. P.Urnayal 32.30 24.75

BoNo., w.tuntltf tranuctlons Amount
2017-18 2018-11

1. Outstanding Payables
Raja Yarns Private J-imited 582.32 524.73
Supreme:Yam Spidners Limited 308.25 135.25
Shri P.Pal.niappan 1,300.74 1.352.91
Smt. PlJmayai 662.17 434.29
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Retirement benefit plans
"DefIned contribution plans

, In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits In respect of
provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions

.• at a specified percentage of the covered employees' salary. The contributions, as specified under the law, are made

. to the Provident Fund.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of Rs. 39.86 Lakhs (for the year ended: Rs. 41.31 Lakhs) represents
contribution payable to these plans by the Company at rates specified In the rules of the plan.

Gratuity is payable as per Payment of Gratuity Ad, 1972. In terms of the same, gratuity is computed by multiplying
fait drawn salary (basic salary Including deamess Allowance if any) by completed years of continuous service with
part thereof in excess of six months and again by 15126. The Ad provides for a vesting period of 5 years for wllhdl'8wal

..•..and retirement and a monetary c:eiIing on gratuity payable to an employee on separation, as may be presaIlecI under
]:'4M Payment of Gratuity Ad, 1972, from time to time. However, in cases where an enterprise has more favourable
.ttarms in this regard the same has been adopted.

}~these plans typically expose the Company to aduarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk and utary riBk.
;t
" Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a diIcIMInt rate
if determined by refel'8nce to the market yields on govemment bonds denominated In Indian
'~. Rupees. If the actual retum on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be
partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan's debt investments.

The present value of the defined benefit plan IiabUity is calculated by reference to lie best
estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An
increase in the life expedancy ofthe plan participants will increase the plan's /lability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the
future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan's liability.

prtncIpal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows :

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

1.00% p.a 1.00%p.a.

Indian assured lives Indian assured lives
Mortality (2006-2008) Mortality (2006-2008)

7.55%p.a 6.80%p.a.

2.00% p.a 2.00% p.a.

tes of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
and other relevant fadors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.



For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March31, 2017

Amounts recognlsed In total comprehensive Income In respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

Amount recognlsed under Employ •• Benefits Expense In the Statement of profit and Loss:
Current service cost 6.37
Net interest expense 5.01
Return on plan assets (exduding amounts induded in net interest expense)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss

Amount recognlsed In Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the Year
Actuarial (gains)llosses • Change in Financial assumptions (7.47) 10.21

- Experience variance 2.95 5.77
Return on Plan assets 0.80 2.34
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (3.71) 18.32

The amount Included In the balance sheet arising from the Company's obligation In respect of Its defined
benefit plans Is as follows :
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation

Funded
Unfunded,

The above provisions are reflected under 'Provision for employee benefits- gratuity' (long-term provisions)
[Refer note 19).

Movements In the present value of the defined benefit obligation In the current year were as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation 150.43 147.28
Current service cost 6.37 5.99
Interest cost 10.22 11.48
Actuarial (gains)/Iosses (4.52) 15.99
Benefits paid (16.94) (30.31)
Closing defined benefit obligation 145.56 150.43

Movements In the fair value of the plan assets In the current year were as follows:
Opening fair value of plan assets
Interest Income
Expected return on plan assets (exctuding amounts included in net interest expense)
Contributions
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains/(Ioss)
Others
Closing fair value of plan assets

Note:

(i) The discount rate is based on the prevaling market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet
date for the estimated terms of the obligations.

(ii) The estimate of future salary increased considered, takes into account the inflation, seniorty, promotion increments
and other relevant factors.

145.57
(66.17)
79.40

79.40

5.21
2.00

(16.94)
(0.80)

5.99
3.72

150.43
(76.70)
73.73

73.73

7.76
2.00

(30.31)
(2.34)



sensitivity analysis

'1 ... Significant actuarial assumptions for the detennination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected
'~Illiary Increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been detenninad based on reasonably possiblei Changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
t The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:
y.

Particulars

t,'· Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2011

150.43 145.57

March 31, 2018
Decrease Increase

March 31, 2017
Decrease Increase

DIscount Rate (-1+1%)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

:~~"8alaryGrowth Rate (1/+1%)
~i!k.~ change compared to base due to sensitivity)
':~~:~:"
'''. Atlrillon Rate (-1+10% of mortality rates)

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

~1Ity Rate (-/+10% of mortality rates)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

140.12
(6.90%)

162.36
7.90%

151.95
1.00%

150.57
0.10%

155.78
7.00%

135.77
(6.70%)

144.04
(1.00%)

145.42
(0.10%)

136.34
(6.30%)

166.25
7.30%

147.05
1.00%

145.72
0.10%

161.91
7.60%

139.56
(7.20%)

148.85
(1.00%)

150.28
(0.10%)

i Risk exposure :

':Jl". Company's Gratuity fund is maintained by an approved trust (Life Insurance Corporation of India). A large portion of
;C·,'" Investment made by the L1C is in government bonds and securities and other approved securities. Hence, the
,,'company is not exposed to the risk of asset volatality as atthe balance sheet date.

r Funding arrangements and Funding Policy

<.1t'te Company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees. Every year, the
ce company carries out a funding valuation based on the latest employee data provided by the compnay. Any

In the assets arising as a result of such valuation is funded by the Company.

Contribution during the next annual reporting period
Company's best estimate of Contribution during the next year

rIty Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
led average duration (basad on discounted cash flows)

cash flows over the next (valued on undlscounted basis): Indian Rupees (lNR)
8.39

69.07
96.45
84.94

absences

,.,. the poliey of the Company, compensated absences are not entitled to be carried forwan:l to the subsequent
year and lapse at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, no liability tDwards compensated absences

recognised in these financial statements.
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48 Fll'It-time adoption of Ind AS

Transition to Ind AS
These are the Company's first finanaal statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.
The accounting policies set out in Note 3 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018, the
comparative information presented In these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 and in the preparation of an opening Ind
AS balancesheetatApril1, 2016 (Thecompeny's date of transition).
In preparing its opening IOOAS balance sheet, the company has adjusted the amounts repor1Bd previously In financial statements prepared In
accordance with the accounting standards generally applicable to the Company (as amended from time to lime) and other relevant provtsions
oftheAct (previous GAN' or Indian GAN').
An explanation of how the transition from previous GAN' to Ind AS has affected the company's financial position, financial perfonnance and
cash flows is set out in the follC7tNingtables and notes.
A. exemptions and exceptions availed

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the lransitlon from previous
GAN'tolndAS.

A.1 IndAS optlonalexempllons
A. 1.1. Deemed COlt for PPE

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to fair value a class of property, plant and equipment or to continue with the carrying
value for all of lis PPE as recognised in the financial sIHlmeI lis as at the date of transition to 100 AS, meastIl'8d as per the previous
GAN' and use that as Its deemed costas at the dale of transillon after making necessary adjustmen1s for de-almmissioning IIabillties.
Accordingly, the company has elected to continue the property, plant and equipment at their previous GAAPvalues.

A.1~ Designation ofpNVlowly recognludflnanclallnltrumlllll
IndAS 101 alan an entilytodes~ Investments in equity inmJments at FVOCI orFVTPLonthe basis of the facts and drcurnstances
at the dale of transition to IndAS. The company has eIeclBd to apply this exemption forb Investment in equityinvestments.

A.1.3. L•••••
Appendix C to IndAS 17 requies an entity to assess whelhera contractorarrangementcontalns a lease. In accordancewith IndAS 17,
this assessment should be carried out at the Inceplion of the contract or arrangement. Ind AS 101 provides an option to make this
assessment on the basis of facts and circumstances exlslkIg at the dale of transition to IndAS, except where the effect is expected to be
not material. Thecompenyhas elected to apply this exemplionfor such contracIsI anangements.

A.2 IndAS mandatory exceptions
U1 Est1mat81

An entIty's estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to 100 AS shal be consistent with estimates made for the same
date In accordancewllh previous GAN' (after adjustments to relIect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective
evidence that those estimates were in error.
IndAS estimates as atAprll1, 2016 areconsistentwllh the estimates as at thesarne dale made In conformity with previous GAN'. The
company made estimates for impairment c:I financial assets based on expected credit loss model in accordance with IndAS at the date
c:I transition as these were not reqUired under previous GAAP.

B. Mobil to 1Irat-tl1lll adoption
B.1 TradenlC8lvablel

As per Ind AS 109, The company is reqlinld to apply expected credit loss model for recognlsing the allowance for doubtful debts.
AccordIngIy,the CompMy has dMIoped an assessment for allowance forexpecled credit loss. The same has been considered in the
opening and comparallve period linanclal statements.

B.2 Falrvaluallon offtnanclal •••••• and liabilities
Under Ind AS, financial assets and lablltles are k) be valued at amortised cost or fair valued through profit and loss (FVTPL) or tar
valued through Olher comprehensive inoome (FVTOCI) based on the Company's business objectives and the cash flow characteristics
c:lthe undert1lng financial assets and liabIIlIes. The Company has remeasured the financial assets and liabilities as on the date cI
transiIIon and the consequenlial Impact has been gNen in the opening retained earnings.



Asat
March 31, 2017

187.47

Asat
April 1, 2016

117.77

to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2018
8J TraIlIac:tlon costs in respect of financial instnPnelds

Under tile previous GAAP. transaction costs In reJalion to flnancialliabililies are charged to !be flI'IIfit and loss in fie year in whicb !hey
are Incurred.
As perindAS 109, traRsadIoo costs in reI8lion to financialliabilies are to be r.edtIced from !tie I8Isted faancialliablltles and amortised
OlleI'therepayment period of the said HaDiIiIv.The eamehas kleent:enSidered In the opening _ pnparative peIiod Iin8ncial &tatemeRls.
Remeasuremenlof post-employment benefit Dbrtgati.1IS
Uder Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses ~ the return on plan auets, excluding amounts Included in the net
Interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are r«09ftised in other comprehensive income Instead of profit or loss. Under /he
pmious GAN', these remeasurernenls were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. Adjustments have been made lor sucJ:l1&-
classifications! remeasuremenls.
Government grants
Under IJld AS, Government granls related to assets, including non-mOIlelary grants at fair value, is presented in the balance sheet by
setIIng up the grant as deferred income. The grant set up as deferred income is recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis rNef
the useful life of the asset.. The Company has remeasured the capital grants as aforesaid and SCCOUIlle:l in the IndAS financial statemenls.
o.terred taxU.Ind AS, the deferred tax asset and liabilities are ~uired to be accounted based on balance sheet approach and also to be
ret'OlJIlisedon aDlHljuslmenls considered in the opening lod AS batance sheet Accordingly, \he Company bas remeaSU1edlis deferrecj
tax assets and liabilities as aforesaid and accounted in the tndAS IInsneiat statem&nls .

.' .-conciliation reqUired as per Ind AS 101 on transition to Ind AS
.Reconcillatlon of equity
Total equity / shareholders' funds as per Indian GAAP

.. /nd AS Adjustments
Depreciation on capitalisation of EPCG grant
Deferrment of EPCG grant
Expected credit loss
Interest expense on preference shares
Interest income on preference shares
Increaseldecrease on fair valuation of investments
Fair valuation of PPE as deemed cost
Deferred Tax impacts
Total equity/ shareholders' funds as per Ind AS

Reconciliation of Profits
Total comprehensive income as per Indian GAAP
Ind AS Adjustments

Depreciation on capitalisation of EPCG grant
Deferrment of EPCG grant
Expected credit loss
Interest expense on preference shares
Interest income on preference shares
Increase/decrease on fair valuation of investments
Deferred Tax impacts
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS

. our report of even date attached
-ilia V.V.SOUNDARARAJAN & Co.,

red Accountants
No.03944S)

OKKUMAR
, M.No. 021435

,India
30,2018

(19.92)
19.92
(1.89)

(62.11)
91.53
(5.08) (4$2)

1,971.13 1,971.13
(22.65) (15.38)

2,158.40 2,068.58

For the year ended March 31, 2017
69.70

(19.92)
19.92
(1.77)

(62.11)
91.53
(0.26)
(7.27)
89.82

P.UMAYAL
Chairman cum Managing Director

DIN: 00110260

A.SUBRAMANIAN
Chief Financial Officer

P.PALANIAPPAN
Managing Director

DIN: 01577805

SARITA JAIN.G
Company Secretary





We draw
SEBIIHOIMI
all the listed
are holding
shareholder- ct ••• -GQfIlPMY.

These guidelines are Issued bySEBI to streamline and strengthen the procedures and processes with regard to handling and
maintenance cI records, transfer of securities and payment of dividendlinterest/redemption by the RTAs, Issuer Companies and
Bankers to Issue.

't~SANTHAM', 4"Cross Street, New Fairlands, SALEM 636 016
i,Fax No. 0427 - 2331951, CIN: L17115TZ1980PLCOOO916
llediftinail.com Website : www.sncmindia.com 5.

ar Issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) No.
2Ot1l4I2018. SEBI, in point no. 12 (ii) of the Annexure to its circular had directed

to aR Its shareholders through their Registrars and Transfer agents (RTA), who
'c- •••• Copy of the PAN of all the holders and Bank account details of the first I sole lr,2

We had aIrudy sent lndIvfdual communications to all our shareholders holding shares In physical form requesting them
to submit the PAN and Bank mandate details.

this may kindly be treated II first reminder

To e~ UI to update the PANand Bank account detalll, we request you to kindly submit the following documents within
21 days:

f.",,,,Copy of seIf-attested PAN card of the shareholders including joint holders, if any in the format attached

• Bank ale details of the first/sole shareholder, as per the Bank Mandate format attached

• Original cancelled cheque leaf with the name of the first/sole shareholder printed on it or copy of bank passbook showing
name & account details of the account holder attested by the bank manager

On receipt of the above documents, we will update the same in our records.

Kindly note that In case of dividend declaration by the company, all dividends including past unpaid dividends, if any, will be directly
aedited to the bank account furnished by you. It is not out of place to mention here that under section 124 (6) of the Companies
Act 2013, If cividends remain unpaid I unclaimed for a period of seven consecutive years then the underlying shares are also liable
to be transferred to the ale c:lIEPF authority.

We also request you to kindly arrange to send us the first/sole shareholders email Id for sending Mure communications as per
the format attached.

http://www.sncmindia.com


SRI NACHAMMAI COTTONMILLS LIMITED
Registered Office : Door No. 181, 'VASANTHAM', 4th Cross Street, Fairlands, SALEM - 636016.

CIN No. L17115TZ1980PLC000916
ATTENDANCE SLIp· AGM on 2Slb September, 2018

Folio No......................................................• DP 10 No Client 10 No .
Name of the Member Signature .
Name of the Proxy holder ............................•........................................................................ Signature .

l!we hereby record my/our presence at the Annual General Meeting oftM Company to be held on Tuesday, 25th September,2018 at
5.00 p.m at Hotel Sri Sai Vihar, No.30 Murugan Temple Street, Fairlands, Salem· 636 016.
PLEASE CUT HERE AND BRING THE ABOVE ATTENDANCE SLIP TO THE MEETING HALL.

Fonn No. MGT ·11
PROXY FORM

(Pursuant to Section 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19 (3) of the Companies
(Management and Admi nistration) Rules, 2014)

Name of the Shareholder
Registered Address
E-mail 10
Foilo No/Client 10
DPID

CINNo L 17115TZ1980PLCOO0916
Name of the Company Sri Nachammai Cotton Mills Limited
Registered Office : Door No. 181, 'VASANTHAM',4" Cross Stree~

New Fairlands, SALEM - 636016.

Name of the Shareholder
Registered Address
E-mail 10
Foilo No/Client 10
DPID

Name of the Shareholder
Registered Address
E-mail 10
Foilo No/Client 10
DPID

l/we hereby dedare and authorise MrlMrs. As my/our proxy to attend and vote on behalf for me/us at the 38" Annual General Meeting
of the Company be held on Tuesday the 25" September, 2018 at 5.00 P.M at Hotel Sri Sai Vihar, No.30 Murugan Temple Street, New Fairlands,
Salem·636 016 and at any adjoumment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Put a tick mark for the resolutions (,/)
Resolutions - Ordinary Business Yes No

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet ,Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the year
ended 31" March, 2018 and Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To Appoint Sri A. Arunkumar who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment
3. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration

Special Business
4. To ratify the Remuneration paid to Cost Auditor
5. To appoint Sml C. Renuka, as an Additional Director
6. To accord the continuation of Sri Perumal Madahavagopal as the Non Executive Director attaining age of 75 years

Signed this day of 2018.
Signature of the Shareholder :
Signature of Proxy holder(s) :
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
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